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Explanatory Note

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A (this “Amendment”) amends our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2010, that was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on January 10,
2011 (the “Original Filing”).  We are filing this Amendment to include (i) information under Item 9B and (ii) the
information required by Part III and not included in the Original Filing, because we will not file our definitive proxy
statement within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.

Except as set forth in Item 9B and Part III below, no other changes are made to the Original Filing.  Unless expressly
stated, this Amendment does not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Original Filing, nor does it modify or
update in any way the disclosures contained in the Original Filing.  Throughout this report, references to “EMCORE”,
the “Company”, “we”, “our”, or “us” refer to EMCORE Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, taken as a whole, unless
the context otherwise indicates.

PART II

ITEM 9B. Other Information

Executive Bonus Plan for Fiscal Year 2011

At a meeting on November 9, 2010, the Compensation Committee (the “Compensation Committee”) of the Board of
Directors of EMCORE Corporation (the “Company”) adopted a cash incentive plan for its Named Executive Officers
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011 (the “2011 Bonus Plan”). The 2011 Bonus Plan links cash incentive
compensation to the Company’s financial performance, as well as non-financial and strategic operating objectives and
individual and business group performance. Pursuant to the 2011 Bonus Plan, a bonus target for each eligible
executive is created, representing a percentage of that executive’s annual base salary.  The following targets have been
set based upon annual salaries for the indicated Named Executive Officers:

�  Reuben F. Richards, Jr., Executive Chairman and Chairman of the Board – 80%
�  Hong Q. Hou, Ph.D., Chief Executive Officer – 80%
�  Christopher Larocca, Chief Operating Officer – 50%

�  Mark Weinswig, Chief Financial Officer – 35%
�  Charlie Wang, Executive Vice President, China Operations – 35%

�  Monica Van Berkel, Chief Administrative Officer – 35%

Their bonus amounts will be determined by the Compensation Committee based on the achievement of corporate and
individual performance targets, which will be weighted 75% based on corporate performance metrics (25% EBITDA,
25% revenue, 25% free cash flow) and 25% based on strategic and individual objectives. Payment of bonuses (if any)
is normally made after the end of the performance period during which the bonuses were earned. Bonuses normally
will be paid in cash in a single lump sum, subject to payroll taxes and tax withholdings.

The Compensation Committee retains the ability to modify individual executive bonuses based upon individual
performance and the successful completion of business projects and other management performance objectives. In
addition, the Compensation Committee may make long-term equity incentive grants to executive officers and
employees which are not covered under the terms of the 2011 Bonus Plan.

2
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PART III

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Pursuant to EMCORE’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Board of Directors of EMCORE is divided into three
classes as set forth in the following table. The directors in each class hold office for staggered terms of three years.
The Class A directors, Messrs. Russell, Richards and Bogomolny are each being proposed for a three-year term
(expiring in 2014) at our 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Annual Meeting”).     

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the members of and nominees for the Board of Directors:

Name and Other Information Age

Class and
Year in

Which Term Will
Expire Principal Occupation

Served as
Director
Since

NOMINEES FOR ELECTION AT THE ANNUAL MEETING

Thomas J. Russell, Ph.D. (2)
(4)

79 Class A
2011

Chairman Emeritus of the Board,
EMCORE Corporation

1995

Reuben F. Richards, Jr. 55 Class A
2011

Executive Chairman, Chairman of
the Board, EMCORE Corporation

1995

Robert L. Bogomolny (1) (2)
(3) (4)

72 Class A
2011

President, University of Baltimore 2002

DIRECTORS WHOSE TERMS CONTINUE

Charles T. Scott (1) (2) (3) (4) 61 Class B
2013

Director 1998

Hong Q. Hou, Ph.D. 46 Class B
2013

Chief Executive Officer,
EMCORE Corporation

2006

Sherman McCorkle (1) (3) (4) 67 Class B
2013

President and Chief Executive
Officer, Technology Ventures
Corporation

2009

John Gillen (1) (2) (3)(4) 69 Class C
2012

Partner, Gillen and Johnson, P.A.,
Certified Public Accountants

2003

(1) Member of Audit Committee.
(2) Member of Nominating Committee.
(3) Member of Compensation Committee.
(4) Determined by the Board of Directors to be an independent director according to the rules of The

NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASDAQ”).
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the nominees for the office of director and other directors and
executive officers of EMCORE.

THOMAS J. RUSSELL, Ph.D., 79, has been a director of the Company since May 1995 and was elected Chairman of
the Board on December 6, 1996. In March 2008, Dr. Russell was named Chairman Emeritus.  Dr. Russell founded
Bio/Dynamics, Inc. in 1961 and managed the company until its acquisition by IMS International in 1973, following
which he served as President of that company’s Life Sciences Division. From 1984 until 1988, he served as director,
then as Chairman of IMS International until its acquisition by Dun & Bradstreet in 1988. From 1988 to 1992, he
served as Chairman of Applied Biosciences, Inc., and was a director until 1996. In 1990, Dr. Russell was appointed as
a director of Saatchi & Saatchi plc (now Cordiant plc), and served on that board until 1997. He served as a director of
Adidas-Salomon AG from 1994 to 2001. He also served on the board of LD COM Networks until 2004. He holds a
Ph.D. in physiology and biochemistry from Rutgers University.  Dr. Russell’s business and leadership expertise,
experiences as a director at other public companies and familiarity with the Company’s business garnered through his
tenure as a director, Chairman Emeritus and former Chairman of the Board of the Company were the primary
qualifications that have led the Board to conclude that he should serve as a director of our Company.

REUBEN F. RICHARDS, JR., 55, has been a director since May 1995 and Chairman of the Board of Directors and
the Company’s Executive Chairman since March 2008.  Mr. Richards joined the Company in October 1995 and served
in various executive capacities.  Mr. Richards previously served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer from
December 1996 until March 2008. From October 1995 to December 2006, Mr. Richards served as the Company’s
President. Mr. Richards also served as the Company’s interim Chief Financial Officer from August to October
2010.  From September 1994 to December 1996, Mr. Richards was a Senior Managing Director of Jesup & Lamont
Capital Markets, Inc. (an affiliate of a registered broker-dealer). From December 1994 to December 1996, he was a
member and President of Jesup & Lamont Merchant Partners, L.L.C. From 1992 through 1994, Mr. Richards was a
principal with Hauser, Richards & Co., a firm engaged in corporate restructuring and management turnarounds. From
1986 until 1992, Mr. Richards was a director at Prudential-Bache Capital Funding in its Investment Banking Division.
Mr. Richards also served on the Board of Directors of the Company’s former joint venture, GELcore LLC, from 1998
to 2006. Mr. Richards served as a director of WorldWater & Solar Technologies Corporation from November 2006 to
January 2009.  Mr. Richards’ broad-based business skills and experience, leadership expertise, and knowledge of
complex business and financial matters, in-depth understanding of the Company’s business and industry garnered
through his tenure as a Director and Chairman of the Board of the Company, as well as his experience as director at
other public companies in the industry, were the primary qualifications that have led the Board to conclude that he
should serve as a director of our Company.

HONG Q. HOU, Ph.D., 46, has served as a director of the Company since December 2006. Dr. Hou joined the
Company in 1998 and co-founded its Photovoltaics division. From 2000 to 2004, Dr. Hou managed the Company’s
Digital Fiber Optic Products division. From December 2006 until March 2008, Dr. Hou served as President and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company, and on March 31, 2008, he was named as the Chief Executive Officer. From 1995
to 1998, Dr. Hou was a Principal Member of Technical Staff at Sandia National Laboratories. He was a Member of
Technical Staff at AT&T Bell Laboratories from 1993 to 1995. He holds a Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering from the
University of California at San Diego, and a Bachelor of Science degree from Jilin University in China. He has
published over 150 journal articles and holds seven U.S. patents. Dr. Hou currently serves on the Board of Directors
of the Greater Albuquerque Chamber of Commerce and the Kirtland Partnership Committee. Until January 2009, Dr.
Hou also served as a director of Crystal IS, Inc., and WorldWater & Solar Technologies Corporation.  Dr. Hou’s
extensive technical and industry expertise, experiences as a director at other public companies and in-depth knowledge
of the Company’s business and industry garnered through his tenure at the Company, including as a director and chief
executive officer, as well as through his directorship at other public companies in the industry, were the primary
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qualifications that have led the Board to conclude that he should serve as a director of our Company.

CHARLES T. SCOTT, 61, has served as a director of the Company since February 1998. He is currently a
non-executive director of several other companies, including Flybe Group plc and In Technology plc. From January 1,
2004, until August 31, 2010, he was the Chairman of the Board of Directors of William Hill plc, a leading provider of
bookmaking services in the United Kingdom. Prior to that, Mr. Scott served as Chairman of a number of companies,
including Cordiant Communications Group plc, (formerly Saatchi & Saatchi Company plc), and Robert Walters plc.
Mr. Scott is a chartered accountant. Mr. Scott’s extensive accounting, finance and business experience, experiences as
a Chairman and director at other international public companies and familiarity with the Company’s business garnered
through his tenure as a director of the Company were the primary qualifications that have led the Board to conclude
that he should serve as a director of our Company.

4
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JOHN GILLEN, 69, has served as a director of the Company since March 2003.  Mr. Gillen has been a partner in the
firm of Gillen and Johnson, P.A., Certified Public Accountants since 1974. Prior to that time, Mr. Gillen was
employed by the Internal Revenue Service and Peat Marwick Mitchell & Company, Certified Public Accountants
(now KPMG LLP).  Mr. Gillen’s extensive finance, accounting and financial reporting experience, as well as his
familiarity with the Company’s business garnered through his tenure as a director of the Company were the primary
qualifications that have led the Board to conclude that he should serve as a director of our Company.

ROBERT L. BOGOMOLNY, 72, has served as a director of the Company since April 2002. Since August 2002, Mr.
Bogomolny has served as President of the University of Baltimore. Prior to that, he served as Corporate Senior Vice
President and General Counsel of G.D. Searle & Company, a pharmaceuticals manufacturer, from 1987 to 2001. At
G.D. Searle, Mr. Bogomolny was responsible at various times for its legal, regulatory, quality control, and public
affairs activities. He also led its government affairs department in Washington, D.C., and served on the Searle
Executive Management Committee.  Mr. Bogomolny’s business, management, legal, regulatory, public policy and
government affairs experience, as well as his familiarity with the Company’s business garnered through his tenure as a
Director were the primary qualifications that have led the Board to conclude that he should serve as a director of our
Company.

SHERMAN MCCORKLE, 67, has served as a director of the Company since December 2009. Mr. McCorkle is a
native New Mexican, and has spent most of his career deeply involved in the New Mexico business community. Mr.
McCorkle is Chief Executive Officer and President of Technology Ventures Corporation, a nonprofit private
foundation that helps startup companies that are developing technology from the national laboratories, positions he
has held since that company's inception in 1993. Mr. McCorkle co-founded New Mexico Bank and Trust in 1998 and
has served as Charter Director since it was founded. In 1992, Mr. McCorkle co-founded First Community Bank, and
served as Charter Director from 1992 to 1998. He served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Sunwest Credit
Services Corporation from 1988 to 1993.  Mr. McCorkle’s finance, investment and banking experience, as well as his
experiences as a director at other companies, were the primary qualifications that have led the Board to conclude that
he should serve as a director of our Company. 

Non-Director Executive Officers

CHRISTOPHER LAROCCA, 38, joined the Company in May 2004 as Senior Director of Business Development and
Product Strategy and served in that capacity until January 2005.  Between January 2005 and March 2007, Mr. Larocca
served as Senior Director of Marketing and Sales for EMCORE’s Broadband division.  From March 2007 to February
2009, he served as Vice President and General Manager of EMCORE’s Broadband Division.  From February 2009 to
May 2009, Mr. Larocca served as Executive Vice President and General Manager of EMCORE's Solar Photovoltaics
division.  In May 2009, he was promoted to Chief Operating Officer.  Between April 2001 and May 2004, Mr.
Larocca served as Vice President of GELcore, a solid-state lighting joint venture between EMCORE and General
Electric. Prior to joining GELcore in 2001, he held a variety of commercial and Six Sigma roles within General
Electric’s Lighting division. Mr. Larocca holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of
Southern California and a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from Clemson University.

CHARLIE WANG, Ph.D., 53, joined the Company in May 1998 as a Senior Development Engineer. From 2000 to
2003, Dr. Wang served as R&D Manager, and from 2003 to 2007, he served as Engineering Director, and later
Development Director for EMCORE’s Digital Products division. From January 2007 to January 2011, Dr. Wang
served as Vice President and General Manager, EMCORE China, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, and in January
2011 he was promoted to Executive Vice President, China Operations. Prior to joining EMCORE, Dr. Wang served as
R&D Manager at Semiconductor Laser International Corporation (SLIC) from August 1996 to April 1998. Dr. Wang
holds a Ph.D degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of New Mexico and a Master of Science degree in
Optics from the Changchun Institute of Optics and Fine Mechanics in China. He is the Chairman of the Board for
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EMCORE’s subsidiary, Langfang EMCORE Optoelectronics Co. Ltd (EMCORE China), and also an adjunct professor
for the Department of Electrical Engineering and Computer Engineering at the University of New Mexico.

MONICA VAN BERKEL, 42, joined the Company in May 2004 as Vice President, Human Resources.  From August
2007 to May 2009, she served as the Vice President, Business Management. In May 2009, Mrs. Van Berkel was
promoted to Chief Administration Officer and is responsible for driving the strategic direction of the human resources
and information technology functions and ensuring their alignment to the Company’s business. In addition, Mrs. Van
Berkel is responsible for communicating with the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, and acts as
Chairman of the 401(k) Committee. She is a veteran in the human resources field with 15 years of experience
including senior human resources positions with companies such as: First Data, Gateway and Western Digital. During
her career, Mrs. Van Berkel has managed human resource functions from start-ups to Fortune 500 companies,
supporting industries in high tech, manufacturing, and professional services. Mrs. Van Berkel holds a Master of
Science degree and Bachelor of Science degree in Administration of Justice from San Jose State University.

ALFREDO GOMEZ, 38, joined the Company in September 2007 as Corporate Counsel. From July 2009 to June
2010, Mr. Gomez served as Vice President and Deputy General Counsel. In June 2010, Mr. Gomez was promoted to
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary.  Mr. Gomez started his legal career as a corporate associate with the
Newport Beach, California law firm of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth. Prior to joining EMCORE, Mr. Gomez
served as in-house corporate counsel for Western Digital Corporation, from October 2003 to April 2005, and as
Director of Legal Affairs for j2 Global Communications, Inc. from April 2005 to September 2007, where he was
responsible for handling a wide variety of legal matters affecting the company.  Mr. Gomez holds a J.D. from the
Georgetown University Law Center, and a Bachelor degree in Economics from Stanford University.

5
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MARK WEINSWIG, 38, joined the Company in October 2010 as its Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Weinswig
previously served as International Finance Director at Coherent, Inc. from September 2009 until October 2010.  Prior
to that, he served as Interim Chief Financial Officer and Vice President of Finance at Avanex Corporation (now
Oclaro) from July 2008 through August 2009.  During the period from January 2006 through July 2008, Mr.
Weinswig was Director of Finance and Business Unit Controller at Coherent, Inc.  From September 2003 through
January 2006, Mr. Weinswig served as Vice President, Financial Planning and Business Development at Avanex.  Mr.
Weinswig’s responsibilities in his prior positions included oversight of the financial and accounting functions at his
previous companies.  Mr. Weinswig began his career working at Morgan Stanley and PricewaterhouseCoopers. He
received an M.B.A. from the University of Santa Clara and a B.S. in business administration from Indiana University.
He has earned the CFA and CPA designations.

JOHN M. MARKOVICH, 54, joined the Company in August 2008 as Chief Financial Officer and served in that
capacity until his departure on August 14, 2010.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based on the Company’s review of copies of all disclosure reports filed by directors and executive officers of the
Company, pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and
written representations furnished to the Company, the Company believes that, except for one late filing by Sherman
McCorkle disclosing one purchase of shares through Mr. McCorkle’s 401(K) plan, there was compliance with all filing
requirements of Section 16(a) applicable to directors and executive officers of the Company during fiscal year
2010.  During fiscal year 2010, no person or entity beneficially owned more than 10 percent of the Company’s
common stock.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Company has adopted a code of ethics entitled “EMCORE Corporation Code of Business Conduct and Ethics”,
which is applicable to all employees, officers, and directors of EMCORE.  The full text of our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is included with the Corporate Governance information available on the Company’s website
(www.emcore.com).  The Company intends to disclose any changes in or waivers from its code of ethics by posting
such information on its website or by filing a Current Report on Form 8-K.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has a separately-designated standing Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) established in
accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs. Scott
(chairman), Gillen, Bogomolny and McCorkle. Each member of the Audit Committee is currently an independent
director within the meaning of NASDAQ Listing Rule 5605(a)(2). The Board of Directors has determined that
Messrs. Scott and Gillen are each Audit Committee Financial Experts. The Audit Committee met 17 times in fiscal
2010.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors held 15 regularly scheduled and special telephonic meetings during fiscal 2010, and took
certain other actions by unanimous written consent. During fiscal 2010, all directors of the Company attended at least
75% of the aggregate meetings of the Board and committees on which they served, during their tenure on the Board.
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The Company compensates each non-employee director for service on the Board of Directors.  Director compensation
for fiscal 2010 included the following:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010

Name (1)

Fees Earned or
Paid in Cash

($)

Stock
Awards
($)(2)

Total
($)

Thomas J. Russell, Ph.D. 28,800 42,000 80,800
Charles T. Scott 57,250 52,500 128,250
John Gillen 54,550 55,500 125,550
Robert L. Bogomolny 50,950 46,000 117,450
Sherman McCorkle 30,900 -- 81,400
(1) Reuben F. Richards, Jr., the Company’s Executive Chairman and Chairman of the Board, and Hong Q.

Hou, Ph.D., the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, are not included in this table because they are
employees of the Company and receive no compensation for their services as directors. Their
compensation is disclosed in the Summary Compensation Table below.

(2) The amounts in this column reflect the dollar amounts granted in fiscal 2010 under the Company’s
2007 Directors’ Stock Award Plan, payment of which is made in common stock of the Company.

6
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Pursuant to the Company’s Directors’ Stock Award Plan adopted by the shareholders at the Company’s 2007 annual
meeting (the “2007 Stock Award Plan”), payments of fees are made in common stock of the Company payable in one
issuance annually based on the closing price on The NASDAQ Global Market on the date of issuance.  Non-employee
directors earn a fee in the amount of $3,500 per Board meeting attended and $500 per committee meeting attended
($1,000 for the chairman of a committee).  The Company also reimburses a non-employee director's reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with such Board or committee meetings. From time to time, Board
members are invited to attend meetings of Board committees of which they are not members.  When this occurs, these
non-committee Board members earn a committee meeting fee of $500.

The Company’s Outside Directors’ Cash Compensation Plan provides for the payment of cash compensation to
non-employee directors for their participation at Board meetings, in amounts established by the Board and
periodically reviewed. Each non-employee director receives a meeting fee for each meeting that he attends (including
telephonic meetings, but excluding execution of unanimous written consents) of the Board. In addition, each
non-employee director receives a committee meeting fee for each meeting that he attends (including telephonic
meetings, but excluding execution of unanimous written consents) of a Board committee. Until changed by resolution
of the Board, the meeting fee is $4,000 and the committee meeting fee is $1,500; provided that the meeting fee for
special telephonic meetings (i.e., Board meetings that are not regularly scheduled and in which non-employee
directors typically participate telephonically) is $750 and the committee meeting fee for such special telephonic
meetings is $600. Any non-employee director who is the chairman of a committee receives an additional $750 for
each meeting of the committee that he chairs, and an additional $200 for each special telephonic meeting of such
committee.  On March 2, 2009, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company agreed to
temporarily suspend the Company’s Outside Directors’ Cash Compensation Plan. Subsequently, on October 8, 2009,
the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, in light of the Company’s improving liquidity position and
business outlook, approved the full reinstatement of the Company’s Outside Directors’ Cash Compensation Plan
effective as of December 8, 2009.

No director who is an employee of the Company receives compensation for services rendered as a director under the
Outside Directors’ Cash Compensation Plan or the 2007 Stock Award Plan.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes EMCORE’s executive compensation program and analyzes the
compensation decisions made for the executive officers included in the Summary Compensation Table (the “Named
Executive Officers”) for fiscal 2010.

Objectives and Components of the Company’s Compensation Program

EMCORE’s executive compensation program is designed to motivate executives to achieve strong financial,
operational, and strategic performance and recognizes individual contributions to that performance.  Through the
compensation program, the Company seeks to attract and retain talented executive officers by providing total
compensation that is competitive with that of other executives employed by companies of similar size, complexity and
lines of business.  The Company’s executive compensation program is also designed to link executives’ interests with
shareholders’ interests by providing a portion of total compensation in the form of stock-based incentives.

The Company’s Annual Compensation Decision-Making Process

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for setting and administering policies that
govern EMCORE’s executive compensation program.  Following the end of each fiscal year, the Compensation
Committee reviews the Company’s performance and the performance of each of the Named Executive Officers for the

Edgar Filing: EMCORE CORP - Form 10-K/A

13



prior fiscal year and typically reviews market surveys and proxy statements of the Company’s peer group (“Peer
Group”), which, for the Solar division, includes Evergreen Solar Inc., First Solar, Inc. and Sunpower Corporation, and,
for the Fiber division, includes Finisar Corporation, JDS Uniphase Corporation and Opnext Inc., as well as companies
that have the Company’s same Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) code and annual revenues of $500 million or
less.  At least every three years, the Compensation Committee also retains the services of a compensation consultant
to assist in gathering a more comprehensive set of comparative data (all comparative market data is collectively
referred to as the “Comparative Compensation Data”). Based on such a review, the Compensation Committee discusses
and approves any potential base salary increases related to the current fiscal year and awards annual cash incentives
and equity grants in recognition of Company and individual performance for the prior fiscal year.

7
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In November 2009, the Compensation Committee retained a compensation consultant to provide information to the
Compensation Committee on all matters related to the fiscal year 2010 compensation of our Named Executive
Officers and our compensation programs generally. R.D. Brown & Company was retained by the Compensation
Committee as its compensation consultant.  The consultant compiled market capitalization, stock price, revenue, net
income and earnings per share data for each Peer Group company, and for the five most highly compensated
individuals at each Peer Group company, the consultant also compiled data regarding the executives’ base salary,
non-equity incentives, equity awards and other benefits.  In addition, the consultant reviewed salary data from various
other published market surveys. This information was reviewed by the Compensation Committee in making its
compensation decisions for fiscal 2010.

Events after the End of the Fiscal Year

On October 8, 2010, the Board of Directors appointed Mark Weinswig as Chief Financial Officer of the Company. In
connection with Mr. Weinswig’s appointment as Chief Financial Officer, the Compensation Committee approved the
terms of Mr. Weinswig’s compensation.  Mr. Weinswig will be paid an annual base salary of $260,000 and is eligible
to participate in the Company’s fiscal year 2011 Bonus Plan (defined below). Mr. Weinswig was also granted options
to purchase 300,000 shares of EMCORE common stock pursuant to the Company’s 2010 Equity Incentive Plan  at an
exercise price of $0.95 per share, which was the closing price of EMCORE’s common stock on October 11, 2010, the
first day of Mr. Weinswig’s employment.  The options will vest in five equal annual installments commencing on
October 11, 2011.  Mr. Weinswig was also reimbursed for relocation expenses and will be eligible to participate in
other employee benefit plans that are generally available to EMCORE employees.

Base Salary

Base salaries for executives are determined based upon job responsibilities, level of experience, individual
performance, and Comparative Compensation Data.  The goal for the base salary component is to compensate
executives at a level that approximates the median salaries of individuals in comparable positions and markets, which
we believe to be the threshold salary level needed to attract, motivate and retain talented executives.  Mr. Richards, the
Company’s Executive Chairman, reviews the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and the other executive
officers and recommends salary increases for these individuals to the Compensation Committee. The Executive
Chairman also recommends salary increases for himself, based on his assessment of Comparative Compensation Data
and his personal performance.  These recommendations are advisory and are based solely on the judgment and
opinion of the Company’s Executive Chairman taking into account the above-listed factors and recommendation from
the compensation consultant, if retained.  The Compensation Committee independently reviews, adjusts, where
appropriate, and approves the salary increases, if any, for the Executive Chairman and other executive officers based
upon the subjective discretion of the Compensation Committee reviewing the executive officer’s experience,
responsibility and performance. The Company’s Compensation Committee targets the 50th percentile – the point at
which 50% of the sample salaries are lower – when making salary determinations for our Named Executive
Officers.  With respect to each executive officer, the Compensation Committee exercises its judgment as to how to
weigh an executive officer’s individual experience, scope of responsibility and performance when determining any
such salary increases. In executive session, the Compensation Committee reviews any salary increase for the
Executive Chairman.  The Executive Chairman together with Dr. Hou, the Chief Executive Officer, reviews and
approves base salary increases for the Company’s other executives.

Effective January 4, 2010, the Compensation Committee approved the following base salary increase for Mr. Larocca:

Mr. Larocca:  $234,300 to $260,000.

Effective January 4, 2010, the following base salary increases were approved for Dr. Wang and Mrs. Van Berkel:
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Dr. Wang: from $180,015 to $230,000;

Mrs. Van Berkel: from $200,000 to $222,500;

Since Dr. Wang and Mrs. Van Berkel were not Named Executive Officers during fiscal year 2010, their base salary
increases were approved by the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Effective April 12, 2010, the Compensation Committee approved the following base salary increases for the following
Named Executive Officers:

Dr. Hou:  from $420,000 to $450,445;

Mr. Richards:  from $437,325 to $450,445;

Mr. Markovich:  from $300,000 to $309,000.

Annual Cash Incentives

Typically, EMCORE establishes a cash incentive plan each fiscal year which provide perpetual licenses with up-front
revenue resulting in a revenue shortfall. If in future quarters we fail to close orders expected to be completed by the
end of a quarter, particularly if these orders are for perpetual licenses with up-front revenue, our quarterly results
would suffer and the market price of our common stock would likely decline. We are seeking to introduce transaction
structures that involve ratable revenue recognition, but these types of transactions do not yet account for a material
portion of our revenue.

Our inability to meet future financial performance targets that we announce or that are published by research analysts could cause the
market price of our common stock to decline.

From time to time, we provide guidance related to our future financial performance. In addition, financial analysts publish their own
expectations of our future financial performance. Because our quarterly revenue and our operating results fluctuate, future financial performance
is difficult to predict. In the past, we have failed to meet our guidance. Future downward adjustments of our guidance or the failure to meet our
guidance or the expectations of research analysts would  cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

Management�s ability to accurately predict performance is affected in large part by a significant portion of our total revenue being dependent
upon the closing of new large customer orders. In addition, our guidance is based in part upon the expectation of new product sales and services
offerings with which we have a limited history.  In the event we fail to achieve projected revenue levels in any quarter, we will be unable to
reduce our expenses for that quarter in a corresponding fashion, and our results will not meet our guidance or the expectations of securities
analysts or investors, which would cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

The trading market for our common stock relies in part on the research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us or our
business. We do not control these analysts. If one or more of the analysts who currently cover us downgrade our stock, our stock price would
likely decline rapidly. Furthermore, if one or more of these analysts cease coverage of us, we could lose visibility in the market, which in turn
could cause our stock price to decline.

Because a small number of customers have historically accounted for and may in future periods account for substantial portions of our
revenue, our revenue could decline because of delays or losses of specific customer orders.

A small number of customers have historically accounted for, and may in future periods account for, substantial portions of our revenue. For the
quarter ended December 31, 2006, one customer accounted for 13% of our total revenue for the quarter. Transaction structures that involve
ratable revenue recognition and our consumer offerings, which typically involve payment on a per transaction basis, could reduce our
dependence on large transactions with a small number of customers.   However, in the near term, we are likely to continue to derive a significant
portion of our revenue from large transactions with a limited number of customers. Therefore, our revenue could decline because of the loss or
delay of a single
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customer order. Additionally, we may not obtain new customers. The failure to obtain significant new customers, particularly customers that
purchase perpetual licenses with up-front payments, the loss or delay of significant customer orders or the failure of existing customers to pay
ongoing fees when due would harm our operating results.

Our sales cycle is lengthy and if revenue forecasted for a particular quarter is not realized in that quarter, significant expenses incurred
may not be offset by corresponding revenue.

Our sales cycle for our software typically ranges from three to nine months or more and may vary substantially from customer to customer. The
purchase of our products and services for corporate customers generally involves a significant commitment of capital and other resources by a
customer. This commitment often requires significant technical review, assessment of competitive products and approval at a number of
management levels within a customer�s organization. In addition, in the wake of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, companies have enhanced their
approval processes, making sales more difficult or protracted. While our customers are evaluating our products and services, we may incur
substantial sales and marketing expenses and spend significant management effort to complete these sales. Any delay in completing sales in a
particular quarter or the failure to complete a sale after expending resources during the sales cycle could cause our operating results to suffer.

Our recently announced consumer technology support initiative will increase operating expenses without any assurance of yielding
increased revenue.

We have announced a plan to extend our business by providing consumer technology support services. In addition to continuing to offer our
software to corporate customers, we are offering technology support to consumers.  We may not be able to offer these new services successfully.
We have limited experience in reaching or serving consumers directly or in managing call centers. As a result, we expect to use significant cash
and incur increased operating expenses to support this new initiative, including costs of our outsourced call centers, promotional costs associated
with reaching consumers and costs of obtaining personnel with the necessary consumer expertise.  These investments may not yield increased
revenue to offset these expenses. Furthermore, this new business initiative, if not favorably received by consumers, could damage the reputation
of our corporate enterprise business as well as strain our management, financial and operational resources necessary to maintain our corporate
business. The lack of market acceptance of such efforts or our inability to generate satisfactory revenue from such expanded services would have
a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results.

Our future product and service offerings may not achieve market acceptance.

If we fail to develop enhanced versions of our software in a timely manner or to provide products and services that achieve rapid and broad
market acceptance, we may not maintain or expand our market share. We may fail to identify new product and service opportunities for our
current market or new markets that we enter in the future. In addition, our existing products may become obsolete if we fail to introduce new
products or product enhancements that meet new customer demands, support new standards or integrate with new or upgraded versions of
packaged applications or operating systems. We have limited control over factors that affect market acceptance of our product and services,
including:

•  the willingness of companies to transition to automated solutions; and

•  customer preferences for competitors� solutions or other technologies.

If our existing customers do not renew maintenance contracts or purchase additional products and services, our operating results could
suffer.

Historically, we have derived, and expect to continue to derive, a significant portion of our total revenue from existing customers who purchase
additional products and services and renew maintenance
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contracts. Our customers may not renew maintenance contracts or purchase additional products and services. In addition, as we introduce new
products, our current customers may not require or desire the functionality of our new products and may not ultimately purchase these products.
If our customers do not renew maintenance contracts or do not purchase additional products and services, our operating results would suffer.

We are seeking to increase our international revenues and if our revenue from this effort does not exceed the expense of establishing and
maintaining international operations, our business could suffer.

We are seeking to increase our international revenues.  For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006, international revenue was 11%,
21% and 23% of total revenue, respectively.  We have limited experience in international operations and may not be able to compete effectively
in international markets or effectively manage our operations in various countries. If we do not generate enough revenue from international
operations to offset the expense of these operations, our operating results could suffer. Risks we face in conducting business internationally
include:

•  costs of staffing and managing international operations;

•  smaller customers with less ability to pay United States rates for software and services;

•  difficulty in reaching geographically dispersed customers;

•  differing technology standards and legal considerations;

•  longer sales cycles;

•  dependence on local vendors and consultants;

•  difficulties in staffing and managing international operations, including the difficulty in managing a
geographically dispersed workforce in compliance with diverse local laws and customs;

•  potential adverse tax consequences;

•  changes in currency exchange rates and controls;

•  diff icult ies in maintaining effective internal  control  over f inancial  report ing as a result  of  a
geographically-dispersed workforce and customers;

•  longer collection cycles for accounts receivable; and

•  the effects of external events such as terrorist acts and any related conflicts or similar events worldwide.

Our operating results will suffer if we do not expand and manage our professional services organization effectively.

Clients that license our software typically engage our professional services organization to assist with installation and implementation of our
software and related consulting services. Revenue from professional services represented a substantial portion of our total revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2006. We plan to further increase the number of professional services personnel, especially internationally, to meet
customer needs. We may not be able to recruit the professional services personnel we need or retain our current professional services personnel
because competition for qualified professional services personnel is intense. New professional services personnel will require training and
education and take time to reach full productivity.

In addition, we cannot be certain that our professional services business will operate in a profitable manner. We have generally billed our
customers for professional services on a time and material basis, using an agreed upon daily rate. However, customers have increasingly
requested various contract
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structures, including milestone-based contracts and contracts for a fixed total fee. If unanticipated factors in a project are encountered and the
contract structure prevents us from billing additional amounts, we may be subject to monetary penalties, and the profitably of our professional
services business would suffer. Furthermore, an estimated loss on a contract is generally required to be recorded in the period in which a loss
becomes evident. Recording a loss on a services contract could have a material adverse effect on our operating results for the period in which the
loss was recorded.

Our failure to establish and expand third-party alliances would harm our ability to sell our software and provide our services.

We have alliances with third parties that are important to our business. Our existing relationships include those with  hardware vendors and
managed service providers who provide outsourced support to corporate customers. If these relationships fail, we may need to devote
substantially more resources to the sales and marketing of our products and services than we would otherwise, and our efforts may not be as
effective. For example, companies that provide outsourced support and services often have extensive relationships with our existing and
potential customers and significant input in the purchase decisions of these customers. In addition, we may establish relationships with third
party resellers and other sales partners as we expand internationally. Our failure to maintain existing relationships, or to establish new
relationships with key third parties, could significantly harm our ability to sell our products and services. In addition, our competitors may have
strong alliances with other companies, including hardware providers, which could impact our ability to obtain greater market share, participate in
deals where hardware and software are sold together, or require us to reduce the price of products and services, which could harm our business,
prospects, financial condition and operating results.

Our consumer offerings require us to establish and maintain relationships with third parties who will direct consumers to us and provide
technology support services to consumers based on our technology, as well as with third parties to whom  we outsource our call center services.
Failure to establish or maintain these relationships on acceptable terms or at all could materially and adversely affect the success of this
initiative.

We may engage in investments or acquisitions or other strategic matters that could divert management attention and prove difficult to
integrate with our business.

We may engage in acquisitions of other companies, products or technologies or in other strategic initiatives. If we fail to integrate successfully
any future acquisitions, the operating results of the combined company could decline. The process of integrating businesses, technologies,
services or products may result in unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures. Acquisitions involve a number of other potential risks to
our business, including the following:

•  unanticipated costs and liabilities and unforeseen accounting charges or fluctuations;

•  delays and difficulties in delivery of products and services from the combined company;

•  failure to integrate management information systems, personnel, research and development, marketing, sales and
support operations;

•  loss of key employees;

•  diversion of management�s attention from other business concerns and disruption of our ongoing business;

•  difficulty in maintaining controls and procedures;

•  uncertainty on the part of our existing customers about our ability to operate on a combined basis;

•  loss of customers;
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•  loss of alliance partners;

•  failure to realize the potential financial or strategic benefits of the acquisition; and

•  failure to successfully further develop the combined technology, resulting in the impairment of amounts recorded
as goodwill or other intangible assets.

We must compete successfully in the market for software and services that resolve technology problems or our business will suffer.

We compete in markets that are highly competitive, subject to rapid change and significantly affected by new product introductions and other
market activities of industry participants. We compete with a number of companies in the market for automated delivery of support and service
automation and other vendors who may offer products or services with features that compete with specific elements of our software products and
services. In addition, our customers and potential customers have developed or may develop internally similar software systems.

The markets for our products are still rapidly evolving, and we may not be able to compete successfully against current and potential
competitors. Our ability to expand our business will depend on our ability to maintain our technological advantage, introduce timely enhanced
products to meet growing support needs, deliver on-going value to our customers and scale our business. Our potential competitors may have
longer operating histories, significantly greater financial, technical and other resources, stronger strategic alliances or greater name recognition
than we have. Competition in our markets could reduce our market share or require us to reduce the price of products and services, which could
harm our business, financial condition and operating results.

As we further enter the market for consumer technology support, we expect to compete against a set of competitors different than the
competitors against whom we have historically competed, including electronics retailers offering on-site technology support services, companies
offering online technology support services and companies offering local technology support services. Certain of these anticipated competitors
have longer operating histories, significantly greater financial, technical and other resources, stronger strategic alliances or greater name
recognition than we have.

The loss of key personnel and the integration of new management may affect our ability to achieve our business goals.

Our success depends on the skills, experience and performance of our senior management, engineering, sales, marketing and other key
personnel. The loss of the services of any of our executive officers or other key personnel at the Senior Vice President or Vice President level,
could harm our business and our ability to achieve our business goals.  In addition, many members of senior management have been appointed
within the last year.  Our success will depend to a significant extent on the ability of these executives to function effectively in their new roles
and to work together successfully.  If these executives do not function and work together successfully or if we lose the services of one or more of
our executives or key employees, our business could be harmed.

Our exposure to the credit risks of our customers and resellers could adversely affect our operating results and financial condition.

To sell to some of our customers, we may be required to take risks of uncollectible accounts. We may be exposed to similar risks relating to third
party resellers and other sales partners, as we intend to increasingly utilize such parties as we expand into new geographic regions. Additionally,
as we have expanded our business internationally, we have experienced longer payment terms and collection cycles from customers outside the
United States. While we monitor these situations carefully and attempt to take appropriate measures to protect ourselves by recognizing revenue
upon collection of accounts from
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customers we deem to have credit risks and upon sell-through by resellers, it is possible that we may have to write down or write off doubtful
accounts. Such write-downs or write-offs would negatively affect our operating results for the period in which they occur, and, if large, could
have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

Our products depend on and work with products containing complex software, and if our products fail to perform properly due to
errors in the software, we may need to devote resources to correct the errors or compensate for losses from these errors and our
reputation could be harmed.

Our products depend on complex software, both internally developed and licensed from third parties. Also, our customers may use our products
with other companies� products, which may also contain complex software. Complex software often contains errors and may not perform
properly. These errors could result in:

•  delays in product shipments;

•  unexpected expenses and diversion of resources to identify the source of errors or to correct errors, whether or not
the error is later determined to be related to our software;

•  damage to our reputation;

•  lost sales;

•  contractual penalties, demands, claims and litigation and related defense costs; and

•  warranty claims.

In our consumer offerings, we generally use our own products to diagnose and resolve consumer technology problems. If our products fail to
perform well in this environment, our consumer offerings would suffer and may not be successful.

Our software may not operate with the hardware and software platforms that are used by our customers now or in the future, and, as a
result, our business and operating results may suffer.

We currently serve a customer base with a wide variety of constantly changing hardware, software and networking platforms. If we fail to
release versions of our software that are compatible with operating systems, software applications or hardware devices used by our customers,
our business and operating results would suffer. Our future success also depends on the continuing ability of our products to inter-operate with
multiple platforms and packaged applications used by our customer base and on our management of software being developed by third parties
for our customers or for use with our products.

We rely on third-party technologies and our inability to use or integrate third-party technologies could delay product or service
development.

We intend to continue to license technologies from third parties, including applications used in our research and development activities and
technologies such as third-party search engine technology, which are integrated into our products and services. Our inability to obtain or
integrate any of these technologies with our own products could delay product and service development until equivalent compatible technology
can be identified, licensed and integrated. These technologies may not continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms or at all.
We may fail to successfully integrate any licensed technology into our products or services, which would harm our business and operating
results. Third-party licenses also expose us to increased risks that include:

•  risks of product malfunction after new technology is integrated;

•  the diversion of resources from the development of our own proprietary technology; and
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•  our inability to generate revenue from new technology sufficient to offset associated acquisition and maintenance
costs.

Our system security is important to our customers and we may need to spend significant resources to protect against or correct
problems caused by security breaches.

A fundamental requirement for online communications, transactions and support is the secure transmission of confidential information. Third
parties may attempt to breach our security or that of our customers. We may be liable to our customers for any breach in security and any breach
could harm our business and reputation. Also, computers are vulnerable to computer viruses, physical or electronic break-ins and similar
disruptions, which could lead to interruptions, delays or loss of data.  We recently released a security advisory and a patch for a remote code
execution vulnerability in several of our ActiveX components.  We may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to further
protect against security breaches or to correct problems caused by any breach.

Our reported results of operations will continue to be materially and adversely affected by our adoption of SFAS 123R.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123R), became effective in our first quarter
of 2006, and has resulted in our recognition of substantial compensation expense relating to our employee stock options and employee stock
purchase plans. Historically, we generally have not recognized in our statement of operations any compensation expense related to stock option
grants we issue under our stock option plans or the discounts we provide under our employee stock purchase plans. Under the new rules, we are
required to measure the compensation expense related to employee stock awards on a fair value basis, which leads to substantial additional
compensation expense and a material adverse effect on our reported results of operations.

If we are unable to successfully address the material weakness in our disclosure controls and procedures or otherwise maintain effective
disclosure controls and procedures, including our internal control over financial reporting, our ability to report our financial results on
a timely and accurate basis may be adversely affected.

We have evaluated our �disclosure controls and procedures� as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as well as our internal control over financial reporting as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Our independent registered
public accounting firm has performed a similar evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting. Effective controls are necessary for us
to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our operating
results would be harmed. For the period ended December 31, 2006, we concluded that we had a material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting, as further described in Item 8, Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our independent
registered public accounting firm reached the same conclusion. We are implementing corrective actions, which we believe will remediate this
material weakness. However, we cannot be certain that these measures will remediate the material weakness we have identified or, if we are
successful in remediating this material weakness, whether we will be able to maintain adequate controls over our financial processes and
reporting in the future. If these actions are not successful in addressing this material weakness, our ability to report our financial results on a
timely and accurate basis may be adversely affected. In addition, if we cannot establish effective internal control over financial reporting and
disclosure controls and procedures, investors may lose confidence in our reported financial information, which could cause the market price of
our common stock to decline.
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We have recorded long-lived assets, and our results of operations would be adversely affected if their value becomes impaired.

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets were recorded in part due to our acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Core Networks
Incorporated in September 2004. We also have certain intangible assets with an indefinite life. We assess the impairment of goodwill and
indefinite life intangible assets annually or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. We assess the impairment of acquired product rights and other finite life intangible assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the
discounted future net cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. Such
impairment loss would be measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value. Material differences may result
in write-downs of net long-lived and intangible assets, which would cause our operating results to suffer.

Failure to resolve pending securities claims and other lawsuits may lead to continued costs and expenses and divert management�s
attention from our business, which could cause our revenue and our stock price to decline.

Securities class action lawsuits were filed against us in November 2001 and again in December 2004. In addition, a derivative stockholder
lawsuit was filed against us in December 2005. Should these lawsuits linger for a long period of time, whether ultimately resolved in our favor
or not, or further lawsuits be filed against us, coverage limits of our insurance or our ability to pay such amounts may not be adequate to cover
the fees and expenses and any ultimate resolution associated with such litigation. The size of these payments, if any, individually or in the
aggregate, could seriously impair our cash reserves and financial condition. The continued defense of these lawsuits also could result in
diversion of our management�s time and attention away from business operations, which could cause our financial results to decline. A failure to
resolve definitively current or future material litigation in which we are involved or in which we may become involved in the future, regardless
of the merits of the respective cases, could also cast doubt as to our prospects in the eyes of customers, potential customers and investors, which
could cause our revenue and stock price to decline.

Privacy concerns and laws or other domestic or foreign regulations may reduce the effectiveness of our solutions or harm our reputation
and cause us to lose customers.

Our software contains features which allow our customers to control, monitor or collect information from computers running the software.
Federal, state and foreign government bodies and agencies, however, have adopted or are considering adopting laws and regulations regarding
the collection, use and disclosure of personal information obtained from consumers and individuals. Liability for violation of, costs of
compliance with, and other burdens imposed by such laws and regulations may limit the use and adoption of our solutions and reduce overall
demand for them. Even the perception of privacy concerns, whether or not valid, may inhibit adoption of our solutions. In addition, we may face
claims about invasion of privacy or inappropriate disclosure, use or loss of this information. Any imposition of liability could harm our
reputation, cause us to lose customers and cause our operating results to suffer.

We may not obtain sufficient patent protection, which could harm our competitive position, increase our expenses and harm our
business.

Our success and ability to compete depend to a significant degree upon the protection of our software and other proprietary technology. It is
possible that:

•  our pending patent applications may not be issued;

•  competitors may independently develop similar technologies or design around any of our patents;
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•  patents issued to us may not be broad enough to protect our proprietary rights; and

•  our issued patents could be successfully challenged.

We rely upon patents, trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets to protect our proprietary rights and if these rights are not sufficiently
protected, it could harm our ability to compete and to generate revenue.

We rely on a combination of laws, such as patents, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, and contractual restrictions, such as
confidentiality agreements and licenses, to establish and protect our proprietary rights. Our ability to compete and grow our business could suffer
if these rights are not adequately protected. Our proprietary rights may not be adequately protected because:

•  laws and contractual restrictions may not adequately prevent misappropriation of our technologies or deter others
from developing similar technologies; and

•  policing unauthorized use of our products and trademarks is difficult, expensive and time-consuming, and we
may be unable to determine the existence or extent of this unauthorized use.

Also, the laws of other countries in which we market our products may offer little or no protection of our proprietary technologies. Reverse
engineering, unauthorized copying or other misappropriation of our proprietary technologies could enable third parties to benefit from our
technologies without paying us for them, which would harm our competitive position and market share.

We may face intellectual property infringement claims that could be costly to defend and result in our loss of significant rights.

Other parties may assert intellectual property infringement claims against us or our customers and our products may infringe the intellectual
property rights of third parties. For example, our products may infringe issued patents that may relate to our products. In addition, as is
increasingly common in the software industry, we may be confronted with the aggressive enforcement of patents by companies whose primary
business activity is to acquire patents for the purpose of offensively asserting them against other companies. Intellectual property litigation is
expensive and time-consuming and could divert management�s attention from our business. If there is a successful claim of infringement, we may
be required to develop non-infringing technology or enter into royalty or license agreements, which may not be available on acceptable terms, if
at all. Our failure to develop non-infringing technologies or license proprietary rights on a timely basis would harm our business.

If the growth of demand for digital services does not continue, our ability to increase our revenue could suffer.

Our ability to increase our revenue will depend in part on increased demand for digital services. If this demand does not grow as rapidly or to the
extent we anticipate, our business could suffer. The growth of digital services is uncertain and will depend in particular upon the availability, at a
reasonable price, of such digital services, the building of infrastructure to support such services, the availability of competitive products, and the
reliability of such services.

We may experience a decrease in market demand due to uncertain economic conditions in the United States and in international
markets, which has been further exacerbated by the concerns of terrorism, war and social and political instability.

The United States and international economies have in the past experienced periods of slow economic growth and this could occur again. In
addition, terrorist attacks in the United States and turmoil in certain overseas regions have increased uncertainty and may exacerbate a decline in
economic conditions, both domestically and internationally. If the economy declines as a result of economic, political and social turmoil, or if
there are further terrorist attacks in the United States or elsewhere, we may experience decreases in the demand for our products and services,
which would harm our operating results.
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We may be required to change our business practices if there are changes in accounting regulations and related interpretations and
policies.

Accounting standards groups and regulators are actively re-examining various accounting policies, guidelines and interpretations related to
revenue recognition, income taxes, investments in equity securities, facilities consolidation, accounting for acquisitions, allowance for doubtful
accounts and other financial reporting matters. These standards groups and regulators could promulgate interpretations and guidance that could
result in material and potentially adverse changes to our business practices and accounting policies.

New rules and regulations for public companies have increased and may continue to increase our administrative costs.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as new rules subsequently implemented by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Nasdaq
Global Select Market, has required changes in corporate governance practices of public companies.  These rules and regulations are increasing
our legal and financial compliance costs, and making some activities more time-consuming and costly. These rules and regulations make it more
difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and we may be required to accept reduced coverage or incur
substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. These new rules and regulations could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain
qualified members of our board of directors, particularly to serve on our audit committee, and qualified executive officers.

ITEM 1B.  UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not applicable.

ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we signed a lease for our new corporate headquarters facility with approximately 37,400 square feet at 1900
Seaport Boulevard, 3rd Floor, Redwood City, California. We are currently transitioning our headquarters from 575
Broadway in Redwood City, California, where our lease for approximately 23,600 square feet expires in May 2007.
The new corporate headquarters lease expires in July, 2012. We believe the new facilities are adequate and suitable for
our business requirements.

ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Between December 2004 and January 2005, several purported securities class action suits were filed in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California against us, our former Chief Executive Officer, Radha R. Basu, and our former Chief Financial Officer, Brian M.
Beattie. These actions were consolidated on March 22, 2005 as In re SupportSoft, Inc. Securities Litigation, Civil Action No.: c 04-5222 SI. The
consolidated complaint alleges generally violations of certain federal securities laws and seeks unspecified damages on behalf of a class of
purchasers of our common stock between January 20, 2004 and October 1, 2004. Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that defendants made
false and misleading statements concerning our business and guidance for the third quarter 2004, purportedly violating Sections 10(b) and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. On June 1, 2006, this action was certified to proceed as a
class action on behalf of all persons and entities who purchased or otherwise acquired the securities of the Company from January 29, 2004 to
October 1, 2004 and who were allegedly damaged thereby. The case is currently in discovery. A trial date has been set for October 29, 2007.
Defendants intend to vigorously defend themselves against the consolidated lawsuit. While we cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the
litigation, we believe that we have meritorious defenses to such claims.
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In December 2005, a purported derivative stockholder complaint was filed in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San
Mateo captioned White v. Vase et al., No. Civ. 451677. This complaint pursues claims�derivatively and on behalf of the Company as a nominal
defendant�against certain of our directors and former directors: Radha R. Basu, Manuel Diaz, Kevin C. Eichler, Edward S. Russell and James
Thanos. The derivative complaint alleges, among other things, that the director-defendants harmed us by making or permitting us to make false
and misleading statements between January 20, 2004 and October 1, 2004 concerning our business and guidance for the third quarter 2004 and
by purportedly exposing us to liability for securities fraud in violation of their fiduciary duties. On October 4, 2006, the court denied the
defendants� demurrer to the plaintiffs� first amended complaint. The defendants� answered this complaint on November 6, 2006. The case is
currently in discovery. While we cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the litigation, we believe we have meritorious defenses to such
claims.

In November 2001, a class action lawsuit was filed against us and two of our officers in the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York. The lawsuit alleged that our registration statement and prospectus dated July 18, 2000 for the issuance and initial public offering
of 4,250,000 shares of our common stock contained material misrepresentations and/or omissions related to alleged inflated commissions
received by the underwriters of the offering. The defendants named in the lawsuit are SupportSoft, Radha Basu, Brian Beattie, Credit Suisse
First Boston Corporation, Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. and FleetBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. The lawsuit seeks unspecified damages as well as
interest, fees and costs. Similar complaints have been filed against 55 underwriters and more than 300 other companies and other individual
officers and directors of those companies. All of the complaints against the underwriters, issuers and individuals have been consolidated for
pre-trial purposes before U.S. District Court Judge Scheindlin of the Southern District of New York. On June 26, 2003, the plaintiffs announced
that a proposed settlement between the issuer defendants and their directors and officers had been reached. Under the proposed settlement, which
is subject to court approval, our insurance carrier would be responsible for any payments other than attorneys� fees prior to June 1, 2003. A final
settlement approval hearing on the proposed issuer settlement was held on April 24, 2006. The district court took the matter under submission
and has not yet ruled. Meanwhile the consolidated case against the underwriters has proceeded. On October 13, 2004, the district court certified
a class. On December 5, 2006, however, the Second Circuit reversed, holding that a class could not be certified. The Second Circuit�s holding,
while directly affecting only the underwriters, raises some doubt as to whether the proposed issuer settlement will be approved in its present
form. On January 5, 2007, plaintiffs petitioned the Second Circuit for rehearing of the Second Circuit�s decision. On January 24, 2007, the
Second Circuit asked the underwriter defendants to respond to the petition by February 7, 2007. On February 7, 2007, the underwriters filed their
response. While we cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the litigation or whether the settlement will be approved, we believe that the
claims against us and our officers are without merit.

We are also subject to other routine legal proceedings, as well as demands, claims and threatened litigation that arise in the normal course of our
business. The ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain, and either unfavorable or favorable outcomes could have a material negative
impact. Regardless of outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on SupportSoft because of defense costs, diversion of management
resources and other factors.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2006.
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PART II

ITEM 5.  MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT�S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market of Common Stock

Our common stock has been traded publicly on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol �SPRT� since July 19, 2000. Before July 19,
2000, there was no public market for our common stock. The following table sets forth the highest and lowest sale price of our common stock
for the quarters indicated:

Low High
Fiscal Year 2005:
First Quarter $ 5.06 $ 6.70
Second Quarter $ 4.50 $ 5.70
Third Quarter $ 4.78 $ 6.17
Fourth Quarter $ 3.93 $ 5.12
Fiscal Year 2006:
First Quarter $ 3.99 $ 4.80
Second Quarter $ 3.60 $ 4.77
Third Quarter $ 3.31 $ 4.39
Fourth Quarter $ 4.14 $ 6.05

Holders of Record

As of March 8, 2007, there were approximately 180 holders of record of our common stock (not including beneficial holders of stock held in
street name).

Dividend Policy

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock since our inception and do not expect to do so in the foreseeable future.
We currently anticipate that all future earnings, if any, generated from operations will be retained by us to develop and expand our business. Any
future determination with respect to the payment of dividends will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon, among
other things, our operating results, financial condition and capital requirements, the terms of then-existing indebtedness, general business
conditions and such other factors as the Board of Directors deems relevant.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Information regarding the securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans can be found under Item 12 of Part III of this
Report.
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Stock Price Performance Graph

The following graph illustrates a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return (change in stock price plus reinvested dividends) of the
Company�s Common Stock and the CRSP Total Return Index for the Nasdaq U.S. Stocks (the �Nasdaq Composite Index�) and Nasdaq Computer
and Data Processing Services Index from December 31, 2001 through December 29, 2006. The graph assumes that $100 was invested on
December 29, 2001 in us, the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Nasdaq Computer and Data Processing Services Index and that all dividends
were reinvested. No cash dividends have been declared or paid on the Company�s Common Stock. The Company�s Common Stock has been
traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market since July 19, 2000. The comparisons in the table are required by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of the Company�s Common Stock.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG
SUPPORTSOFT, INC.,
THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX, AND
THE NASDAQ COMPUTER AND DATA PROCESSING SERVICES INDEX

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AT PERIOD END

12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/30/05 12/31/06
SupportSoft, Inc. $ 100.00 $ 62.84 $ 209.89 $ 106.22 $ 67.30 $ 87.40
Nasdaq Composite Index $ 100.00 $ 69.13 $ 103.36 $ 112.49 $ 114.88 $ 126.21
Nasdaq Computer & Data Processing
Services Index $ 100.00 $ 68.93 $ 90.84 $ 100.15 $ 103.55 $ 116.26

The information presented above in the stock performance graph shall not be deemed to be �soliciting material� or to be �filed� with the Commission
or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C, except to the extent that we subsequently specifically request that such information be treated as soliciting
material or specifically incorporate it by reference into a filing under the Securities Act or Exchange Act.
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ITEM 6.  SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA.

The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of results of future operations and should be read in conjunction with �Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� and the consolidated financial statements and related notes included
in Items 7 and 8 of Part II of this Report.

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Revenue:
License fees $ 16,415 $ 32,737 $ 37,923 $ 40,885 $ 31,260
Maintenance 15,672 14,317 11,002 5,757 3,038
Services 12,941 14,877 11,692 6,629 6,862
Total revenue 45,028 61,931 60,617 53,271 41,160
Costs and expenses:
Cost of license fees 499 555 295 369 289
Cost of maintenance(1) 1,225 988 418 400 � (1)
Cost of services 13,599 13,128 9,592 6,446 5,883
Amortization of intangible assets 1,090 1,090 363 � 1,580
Research and development 9,247 11,185 9,746 9,199 8,834
Sales and marketing 23,336 25,159 23,965 22,038 22,464
General and administrative 10,163 8,618 6,454 5,405 5,637
In-process research and development � � 1,618 � �
Amortization of deferred compensation � � � � 578
Total costs and expenses 59,159 60,723 52,451 43,857 45,265
Income (loss) from operations (14,131 ) 1,208 8,166 9,414 (4,105 )
Interest income and other, net 6,383 3,619 2,298 502 640
Income (loss) before income taxes (7,748 ) 4,827 10,464 9,916 (3,465 )
Provision for income taxes (487 ) (402 ) (310 ) (496 ) (177 )
Net income (loss) (8,235 ) 4,425 10,154 9,420 (3,642 )
Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.19 ) $ 0.10 $ 0.24 $ 0.27 $ (0.11 )
Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) per
share 44,113 43,032 42,355 34,682 32,486
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.19 ) $ 0.10 $ 0.22 $ 0.25 $ (0.11 )
Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per
share 44,113 44,519 45,590 38,048 32,486

December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 119,891 $ 120,663 $ 120,341 $ 121,414 $ 30,615
Working capital 118,238 119,807 113,320 114,089 23,918
Total assets 152,605 156,249 150,205 139,044 42,160
Long-term obligations 411 1,111 2,210 1,478 67
Accumulated deficit (69,190 ) (60,955 ) (65,380 ) (75,534 ) (84,954 )
Total stockholders� equity 132,503 134,394 127,857 114,006 23,147

(1)  The cost of maintenance was recorded separately beginning in 2003. In 2002, the cost of maintenance was
included in cost of services.
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ITEM 7.  MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The following discussion includes forward-looking
statements.  Please refer to our cautionary statement on page 3 related to forward-looking statements and our risks and uncertainties
listed under Item 1A of this report.

Overview

SupportSoft is a leading provider of software and services that automate the resolution of technology problems. Our solutions reduce technology
support costs, improve customer satisfaction and enable new revenue streams for organizations worldwide. We recently expanded our offerings
and now provide technology support directly to consumers.

Our corporate customers are digital service providers (telecommunications and cable companies) and corporate IT departments. Digital service
providers use our products to automate the installation, activation and verification of broadband services, to reduce the cost and improve the
quality of support for customers, to enable the remote management of devices located at customer premises, and to provide value-added services
to consumers. Corporate IT departments and managed service providers (IT outsourcing firms) use our software to improve the
cost-effectiveness and efficiency of their support through an integrated portfolio of proactive service, self service and assisted service
capabilities.

In the second half of 2006, we announced a new offering to address the consumer technology support market. This offering is an extension of
our traditional business and relies upon our products, technology and expertise in technology problem resolution. The new offering provides
computer problem resolution for consumers over the phone and the Internet. We offer our consumer technology support services through
www.support.com and through consumer-facing companies such as PC manufacturers and digital service providers.

Through December of 2006, our revenue has consisted entirely of software license fees and fees for maintenance, consulting, hosting and
training services. In recent years, we have licensed our software to customers predominately on a perpetual basis in which we recognize the
license revenue up front, assuming all criteria for revenue recognition under the applicable accounting rules have been met. Maintenance fees
relating to perpetual software licenses result in ratable revenue over the period of the maintenance term, which is generally one year. Consulting
and training revenues are generally recognized as the services are performed or in accordance with predefined project milestones. Hosting fees
are recognized ratably over the term of the hosting arrangement.

License revenue and total revenue grew in each of the three quarters following the first quarter of 2006, resulting in license revenue of $16.4
million and total revenue of $45.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Despite the sequential quarterly increases in license revenue in
the last three quarters of 2006, we have experienced a trend of decreasing annual license revenue over the last three fiscal years. License revenue
has decreased due to closing fewer large licensing transactions with corporate customers, particularly U.S.-based digital service providers. To
address the trend of decreasing annual revenue, we have made and are planning to make a number of changes in the business. We have hired
new senior leadership, including a new Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales, Senior Vice President of Global
Services, Chief Marketing Officer, Senior Vice President of Customer Service and Senior Vice President of Consumer Business Development.
We have also hired new regional sales leadership for the North America, EMEA and Asia/Pacific regions and made substantial changes in our
sales force and sales compensation plans. We have expanded our sales and marketing efforts internationally and with channel partners and
increased the size of our professional services organization.
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We have also begun the development of packaged product and service offerings capable of delivering return on investment in shorter time
frames. Finally, we have entered the consumer technology support market with our support.com and consumer technology solutions offerings.

We do not expect immediate returns from our initiatives but believe they can create sustainable revenue growth over time. Although we intend
to leverage many of our existing resources, we are making significant incremental investments in support of these initiatives, including
investments to operate our outsourced call center, to promote our consumer offerings, to expand our professional services organization and to
increase visibility of our enterprise offerings. We expect that these additional investments will precede any material revenue increase from our
new business initiatives. As a result, we currently expect to incur a net loss in each quarter, at least through 2007. We expect that our net loss in
each quarter, as well as for the full year in 2007, will significantly exceed the net losses we incurred during fiscal 2006.

Based upon our recent history, we expect to experience downward revenue seasonality between the fourth and first quarters. Consequently, we
expect revenues for the first quarter of 2007 to be significantly lower than revenue recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006. This seasonal revenue
decline, coupled with the incremental investments noted above will likely result in a significantly larger net loss in the first quarter of 2007 as
compared with the fourth quarter of 2006. Furthermore, as of the filing date of this Form 10-K, we are in the sales and negotiation process with
several companies for the purchase of our products and services. Ultimate closure of these transactions prior to March 31, 2007 will have a
significant influence on whether or not we meet expectations for revenue in the first quarter of 2007.

We intend the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations that follows to provide information that will assist in
understanding our financial statements, the changes in certain key items in those financial statements from year to year, and the primary factors
that accounted for those changes, as well as how certain accounting principles, policies and estimates affect our financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In preparing our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, we make
assumptions, judgments and estimates that can have a significant impact on our net revenue, and operating results, as well as on the value of
certain assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheet. We base our assumptions, judgments and estimates on historical experience and
various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions. On a regular basis we evaluate our assumptions, judgments and estimates and make changes accordingly.
We believe that the assumptions, judgments and estimates involved in the accounting for revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts,
accounting for income taxes, accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets, and stock-based compensation have the greatest potential
impact on our consolidated financial statements, so we consider these to be our critical accounting policies. We discuss below the critical
accounting estimates associated with these policies. For further information on the critical accounting policies, see Note 1 of our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that have been prescribed for the software industry. Revenue
recognition requirements in the software industry are very complex and are subject to change. Our revenue recognition policy is one of our
critical accounting policies because revenue is a key component of our results of operations and is based on complex rules which require us to
make judgments. In applying our revenue recognition policy we must determine which portions of our revenue are recognized currently and
which portions must be deferred. In order to
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determine current and deferred revenue, we make estimates with regard to the expected amount of future services to be performed and the
appropriate fair value for those services. We also make judgments as to whether future services are essential to the functionality of other
elements of the software arrangement. We do not record revenue on sales transactions when the collection of cash is in doubt at the time of sale.
Rather, revenue is recognized from these transactions as cash is collected. The determination of collectibility requires significant judgment.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

We make judgments as to our ability to collect outstanding receivables and provide allowances for the portion of receivables when collection
becomes doubtful. Provisions are made based upon a specific review of all significant outstanding invoices. For those invoices not specifically
provided for, provisions are recorded at differing rates, based upon the age of the receivable. In determining these percentages, we analyze our
historical collection experience and current payment trends. If the historical data we use to calculate the allowance for doubtful accounts does
not reflect the future ability to collect outstanding receivables, additional provisions for doubtful accounts may be needed and the future results
of operations could be materially affected.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the tax jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves management�s
estimation of our actual current tax exposures together with an assessment of temporary differences determined based on the difference between
the financial statement and tax basis of certain items. These differences result in net deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within
the consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that the deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and
to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation allowance. To the extent we establish a valuation allowance or
adjust this allowance in a period, we must include a tax expense or benefit within the tax provision in the statements of operations.

Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2006, goodwill was $9.8 million, and net identifiable intangible assets were $3.2 million. We assess the impairment of
goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets annually or more often if events or changes in circumstances, indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. We assess potential impairment at the entity level because we have only one reporting unit. An impairment loss would be
recognized if the fair value of the Company is less than the carrying value of the Company�s net assets on the date of the evaluation. We assess
the impairment of finite life identifiable intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the undiscounted future net cash flows expected to result from the use
of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. Such impairment loss would be measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and its fair value. The estimate of cash flow is based upon, among other things, certain assumptions about expected
future operating performance and an appropriate discount rate determined by our management. Our estimates of discounted cash flows may
differ from actual cash flows due to, among other things, economic conditions, changes to the business model or changes in operating
performance. If we made different estimates, material differences may result in write-downs of net long-lived and intangible assets, which would
be reflected by charges to our operating results for any period presented. At September 30, 2006, management concluded its annual evaluation
for impairment of goodwill and no impairment was recognized.
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Stock-based compensation

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. We adopted SFAS 123R using the modified
prospective transition method which requires the application of the accounting standard starting from January 1, 2006. Under the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, stock-based compensation cost is estimated at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is
recognized as expense ratably over the requisite service period of the award. We estimate the fair value of stock-based awards on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of
stock-based awards requires judgment, including estimating stock price volatility, forfeiture rates and expected life. If any of these assumptions
used in the option-pricing models changes significantly, stock-based compensation may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

Results of Operations

The following table presents certain consolidated statements of operations data for the periods indicated as a percentage of total revenue.

Years Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Revenue:
License fees 36 % 53 % 63 %
Maintenance 35 23 18
Services 29 24 19
Total revenue 100 100 100
Costs and expenses:
Cost of license fees 1 1 0
Cost of maintenance 3 2 1
Cost of services 30 21 15
Amortization of intangible assets 2 2 1
Research and development 20 18 16
Sales and marketing 52 40 40
General and administrative 23 14 11
In-process research and development 0 0 3
Amortization of deferred compensation 0 0 0
Total costs and expenses 131 98 87
Income (loss) from operations (31 ) 2 13
Interest income and other, net 14 6 4
Income (loss) before income taxes (17 ) 8 17
Provision for income taxes (1 ) (1 ) 0
Net income (loss) (18 )% 7 % 17 %

Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

Revenue ($ in thousands)

2006
% Change
2005 to 2006 2005

% Change
2004 to 2005 2004

License fees $ 16,415 (50 )% $ 32,737 (14 )% $ 37,923
Maintenance 15,672 9 % 14,317 30 % 11,002
Services 12,941 (13 )% 14,877 27 % 11,692
Total revenue $ 45,028 (27 )% $ 61,931 2 % $ 60,617
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Total Revenue.  Total revenue decreased by 27% in 2006 as compared to 2005 and increased by 2% in 2005 as
compared to 2004. Each of the components of total revenue is discussed in more detail below.

License revenue.  License revenue is comprised of fees for term and perpetual licenses of our software. Perpetual license
revenue is recognized using the residual method described in SOP 98-9 for arrangements in which licenses are sold
with multiple elements. We allocate revenues on these licenses based upon the fair value of each undelivered element
including undelivered maintenance, consulting and training. The determination of fair value is based upon vendor
specific objective evidence (VSOE). VSOE for maintenance is based upon separate renewals of maintenance from
customers. VSOE for consulting or training is based upon separate sales of these services to customers. Assuming all
other revenue recognition criteria are met, the difference between the total arrangement fee and the amount deferred
for each undelivered element is recognized as license revenue. Revenue from license fees was $16.4 million in 2006,
$32.7 million in 2005, and $37.9 million in 2004. License fees decreased by approximately $16.3 million, or 50%, in
2006 from 2005 and $5.2 million, or 14%, in 2005 from 2004. The decreases in license revenue from 2005 to 2006
and from 2004 to 2005 were primarily due to fewer large license transactions from our corporate customers. For
example, in 2006, we had three customers that contributed greater than $1.0 million in license revenue for the year as
compared with eight customers in 2005.

Maintenance revenue.  Maintenance revenue is comprised primarily of revenue from post-contract technical support
services which includes software product updates. Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the
maintenance period, which is generally one year.

Maintenance revenue was $15.7 million in 2006, $14.3 million in 2005 and $11.0 million in 2004. Maintenance revenue increased by
approximately $1.4 million, or 9%, in 2006 from 2005, and $3.3 million, or 30%, in 2005 from 2004. The increases in maintenance revenue
were due to new license customers who generally purchase maintenance in connection with their purchase of our software products and more
customers who have licensed our products on a perpetual basis versus a term basis. Generally, under a perpetual license arrangement,
maintenance services are sold separately and, therefore, maintenance revenue is recognized as a separate component of total revenue. Under a
term license arrangement, maintenance services are bundled and not sold separately and, therefore, included with license revenue because we do
not have VSOE of fair value to determine fair value of maintenance for a term-based license.

Services revenue.  Services revenue is primarily comprised of revenue from professional services, such as consulting,
training and fees for hosting services. Services revenue is generally recognized as the services are performed.

Services revenue was $12.9 million in 2006, $14.9 million in 2005, and $11.7 million in 2004. Services revenue decreased by approximately
$1.9 million, or 13%, in 2006 from 2005 and increased by approximately $3.2 million, or 27%, in 2005 from 2004. The decrease in services
revenue in 2006 from 2005 was due mainly to lower services revenue from a single customer who ordered approximately $1.5 million less
consulting services in 2006, as compared to 2005. The increase in services revenue in 2005 from 2004 was mainly due to performing
implementation projects in connection with the growth of our customer base.
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Revenue Mix.   The components of revenue by type, expressed as a percentage of total revenue were:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Perpetual license revenue 32 % 48 % 47 %
Term license revenue 4 % 5 % 16 %
Maintenance revenue 35 % 23 % 18 %
Services revenue 29 % 24 % 19 %
Total revenue 100 % 100 % 100 %

We currently anticipate that license revenue will comprise approximately 30% to 40% of total revenue over the next 12 months, with services
and maintenance revenue comprising the balance. We expect that revenue from perpetual licensing arrangements will comprise almost all of our
license revenue and term license revenue will represent a  small percentage of our license revenue over the next 12 months. Therefore, our future
revenue will depend upon sales of perpetual licenses, generally with up-front license revenue recognition, resulting in less predictability of
future operating results.

The year over year decreases in term license revenue, which is recognized ratably over the duration of the agreement, are largely related to new
customers who have purchased perpetual licenses and existing customers who initially licensed our software on a term license basis choosing, at
or near the end of the initial term, to renew their licenses on a perpetual license basis.

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, no customers accounted for 10% or more of our total revenue. For the year ended
December 31, 2004, two customers accounted for 13% and 10%, respectively, of our total revenue.

Revenue from customers outside the United States accounted for approximately 23%, 21% and 11% of our total revenue in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. Although the percentage of revenue we recognize in the future from international customers will vary from period to period,
we are expanding our international sales and marketing activities and we currently anticipate that revenue from international customers will
increase as a percentage of revenue over the next 12 months.

Cost of license fees, maintenance, services and the amortization of intangible assets

($ in thousands)

2006
% Change
2005 to 2006 2005

% Change
2004 to 2005 2004

Cost of license fees $ 499 (10 )% $ 555 88 % $ 295
Cost of maintenance 1,225 24 % 988 136 % 418
Cost of services 13,599 4 % 13,128 37 % 9,592
Amortization of intangible assets 1,090 0 % 1,090 200 % 363
Total cost of revenues $ 16,413 4 % $ 15,761 48 % $ 10,668

Cost of license fees.  Cost of license fees consists primarily of third-party royalty fees under license arrangements for
technology embedded into or sold with our products and represented approximately 1% or less of total revenue in
each year. Cost of license fees was $499,000 in 2006, $555,000 in 2005, and $295,000 in 2004. Cost of license fees in
2006 was generally in line with 2005 and increased $260,000, or 88%, in 2005 from 2004. The increase in cost of
license fees in 2005 from 2004 was due primarily to royalties for a third-party product that was resold with our
products during 2005, which we did not sell in 2004.
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Cost of maintenance.  Cost of maintenance consists primarily of compensation costs, travel costs, related overhead
expenses for customer support personnel. Cost of maintenance was $1.2 million in 2006, $1.0 million in 2005, and
$418,000 in 2004. Cost of maintenance increased by $237,000, or 24%, in 2006 from 2005 and $570,000, or 136%, in
2005 from 2004. The year over year increases in cost of maintenance were due primarily to increases in salary and
related employees costs and travel expenses as a result of an increase in the number of customer support personnel.

Cost of services.  Cost of services consists primarily of compensation costs, travel costs, related overhead expenses for
professional services personnel and costs from third parties for subcontracted consulting services. Cost of services
revenue was $13.6 million in 2006, $13.1 million in 2005, and $9.6 million in 2004. Cost of services revenue
increased by $471,000, or 4%, in 2006 from 2005, and $3.5 million, or 37%, in 2005 from 2004. The year over year
increases in cost of service revenue were due primarily to increases in salary and related employees costs and travel
expenses as a result of an increase in the number of professional services personnel. Included in cost of services for
the year ended December 31, 2006 was $379,000 of stock-based compensation expense. There were no comparable
expenses in the prior years, because we adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R effective January 1, 2006. We plan to
hire additional professional services personnel in 2007 and therefore expect cost of services to increase over 2006.
Cost of services also includes the third-party costs for our outsourced call center and other costs to support our
consumer technology support offering that was launched in January 2007. Although such costs were not a significant
portion of cost of services in 2006, we expect a substantial increase in these costs for 2007.

Amortization of intangible assets.  There is no change in amortization of intangible assets in 2006 from 2005. Amortization
of intangible assets increased approximately $727,000, or 200%, in 2005 from 2004. The increase in amortization of
intangible assets in 2005 from 2004 was due primarily to the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Core
Networks which was effective September 2, 2004. Consequently, 2006 and 2005 include a full twelve months of
amortization, compared with only four months of amortization in 2004.

Operating expenses

($ in thousands)

2006
% Change
2005 to 2006 2005

% Change
2004 to 2005 2004

Research and development $ 9,247 (17 )% $ 11,185 15 % $ 9,746
Sales and marketing 23,336 (7 )% 25,159 5 % 23,965
General and administrative 10,163 18 % 8,618 34 % 6,454
In-process research & development � N/A � (100 )% 1,618
Total operating expenses $ 42,746 (5 )% $ 44,962 8 % $ 41,783

Research and development.  Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development
expense consists primarily of compensation costs, third-party consulting expenses and related overhead costs for
research and development personnel. Research and development expense was $9.2 million in 2006, $11.2 million in
2005, and $9.7 million in 2004. Research and development expense decreased approximately $1.9 million, or 17%, in
2006 from 2005. The decrease in research and development expense in 2006 from 2005 was due primarily to a
workforce reduction in the third quarter of 2006 designed to align staffing with our new initiatives. The increase in
research and development expense of $1.4 million, or 15%, in 2005 from 2004 was primarily due to additional
headcount and related expenses resulting from the acquisition of Core Networks in September 2004. Twenty three
employees were added to our research and development organization from the acquisition of Core Networks. Included
in research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $422,000 of stock-based
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compensation expense. There were no comparable expenses in the prior years, because we adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R effective
January 1, 2006. We believe the decrease in research and development expense from 2005 to 2006 was temporary because we expect to grow
our research and development expense in 2007.

Sales and marketing.  Sales and marketing expense consists primarily of compensation costs, including salaries, sales
commissions and related overhead costs for sales and marketing personnel; expenses for lead generation activities;
and promotional expenses, including public relations, advertising and marketing events. Sales and marketing expense
was $23.3 million in 2006, $25.2 million in 2005, and $24.0 million in 2004. Sales and marketing expense decreased
by $1.8 million, or 7%, in 2006 from 2005 due primarily to a reduction in commission expenses as a result of lower
revenue in 2006 and a workforce reduction during the third quarter of 2006 designed to align staffing with our new
initiatives. The increase in sales and marketing expense of $1.2 million, or 5%, in 2005 from 2004 was primarily due
to increased headcount and related compensation and travel expenses throughout the year, and international marketing
events in 2005. Included in sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $899,000 of
stock-based compensation expense. There were no comparable expenses in the prior years, because we adopted the
provisions of SFAS 123R effective January 1, 2006. In 2007 we expect to substantially increase our sales and
marketing expenses to continue to develop and promote our consumer technology support offering and to fund other
marketing and selling initiatives that we believe are essential to creating sustainable revenue growth.

General and administrative.  General and administrative expense consists primarily of compensation costs and related
overhead costs for administrative personnel and professional fees for legal, accounting and other professional services.
General and administrative expense was $10.2 million in 2006, $8.6 million in 2005, and $6.5 million in 2004.
General and administrative expense increased approximately $1.5 million, or 18%, in 2006 from 2005 and $2.2
million, or 34%, in 2005 from 2004. Included in general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31,
2006 was $1,638,000 of stock-based compensation expense. There were no comparable expenses in the prior years,
because we adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R effective January 1, 2006. The increase from 2004 to 2005 in
general and administrative expense were primarily due to increases in salaries, consulting expenses and legal fees
related to the defense of the class action lawsuit.

In-process research and development.  In-process research and development expense was zero in 2006 and 2005 and $1.6
million in 2004. The in-process research and development expense was a one-time expense related to our acquisition
of substantially all of the assets of Core Networks on September 2, 2004.

Interest income and other, net

($ in thousands)

2006
% Change
2005 to 2006 2005

% Change
2004 to 2005 2004

Interest income and other, net $ 6,383 76 % $ 3,619 57 % $ 2,298

Interest income and other, net.  Interest income and other, net was $6.4 million in 2006, $3.6 million in 2005, and $2.3
million in 2004. Interest income and other, net increased approximately $2.8 million, or 76%, in 2006 from 2005 and
increased by $1.3 million, or 57%, in 2005 from 2004. The increases in interest income and other, net in 2006 from
2005 and in 2005 from 2004 were primarily due to higher interest rates earned on our invested cash and marketable
securities.
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Provision for income taxes

($ in thousands)

2006 2005 2004
Income (loss) before income taxes $ (7,748 ) $ 4,827 $ 10,464
Provision for income taxes (487 ) (402 ) (310 )
Net Income (loss) $ (8,235 ) $ 4,425 $ 10,154

Provision for income taxes.  In 2006, 2005, and 2004, we recorded income tax provisions of $487,000, $402,000, and
$310,000, respectively. These tax provisions are based on estimates of current taxes due in foreign jurisdictions for
income and withholding taxes. The 2006, 2005 and 2004 tax provisions varied from the expected tax provision at the
U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to benefits from stock option deductions for which stock-based compensation
was not previously benefited and the net reversal of timing differences, offset by nondeductible expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Activities

Net cash generated by (used in) operating activities was $(3.0) million in 2006, $(844,000) in 2005, and $14.5 million in 2004. Amounts
included in net income (loss), which do not require the use of cash, primarily include the depreciation of fixed assets, stock-based compensation
expense, amortization of intangible assets, and in-process research and development. The sum of these items totaled $5.4 million, $2.2 million,
and $2.9 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Net cash used in operating activities during 2006 was the result of the net loss of $(8.2)
million, a decrease in deferred revenue of $1.4 million, a decrease in accounts payable of $700,000, a decrease in accrued compensation of
$556,000, and an increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $443,000 partially offset by a decrease in accounts receivable of $2.3
million and an increase in other accrued liabilities of $605,000. Net cash used in operating activities during 2005 was a result of net income of
$4.4 million, an increase in accounts receivable of $7.8 million, an increase of $177,000 in other long-term assets, and a decrease in deferred
revenues of $1.6 million offset by a decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $1.1 million, an increase in accounts payable of
$686,000, an increase in other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities of $520,000. Net cash generated by operating activities during
2004 was the result of net income of $10.2 million, a decrease in accounts receivable of $3.0 million, a decrease in prepaid expenses and other
current assets of $291,000, a decrease in other long-term assets of $195,000, an increase in accrued compensation of $904,000 and an increase in
other accrued liabilities of $726,000, offset by a decrease in deferred revenue of $4.3 million and accounts payable of $83,000.

Our accounts receivable and deferred revenue balances fluctuate from period to period and are primarily dependent on (i) the timing of the
closure of our license agreements, especially larger agreements concluded late in the period, (ii) the related invoicing and payment provisions
under those contracts, (iii) the timing of maintenance renewals and related invoicing, and (iv) collections.

Accounts receivable decreased to $15.1 million at December 31, 2006 from $17.4 million at December 31, 2005. There were two customers with
balances greater than $1.0 million at December 31, 2006. These two customers accounted for approximately $3.6 million in the aggregate, or
24% of net accounts receivable. The balances for these two customers resulted primarily from invoices raised in December 2006. By
comparison, the higher accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2005 was due primarily to several large license and maintenance renewal
invoices raised in December 2005 for six customers. These six customers each had accounts receivable balances greater than $1.0 million and
together accounted for approximately $11.1 million, or 63% of net accounts receivable at December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2004, there
were only two customers with balances greater than $1.0 million.
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These two customers accounted for approximately $4.9 million in the aggregate, or 51% of net accounts receivable.

Total deferred revenue decreased to $13.6 million at December 31, 2006 from $15.0 million at December 31, 2005 due primarily to lower
deferred maintenance revenue. Customers typically purchase maintenance contracts when they purchase our products. Therefore, the decrease in
deferred maintenance revenue is consistent with the lower level of license revenue in 2006 as compared to 2005. Total deferred revenue
decreased to $16.7 million at December 31, 2004 from $20.9 million at December 31, 2003. The decrease in total deferred revenue was
primarily due to a decrease in deferred license revenue from term-based arrangements, partially offset by an increase in deferred maintenance
revenue, as our business has transitioned to more perpetual-based arrangements from term-based arrangements.

In 2007, we expect to make substantial investments in support of business initiatives that we believe are essential to creating long term revenue
growth. We expect that these investments will precede any material revenue from our new business initiatives. We therefore expect to use a
significantly higher level of cash from operations in 2007 than in 2006.

Investing Activities

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities was $(8.0) million in 2006, $5.5 million in 2005, and $(24.2) million in 2004. Net cash used
in investing activities in 2006 was primarily due to the purchase of $92.4 million in marketable securities and to a lesser extent the purchase of
$964,000 in property and equipment offset by the sale and maturity of $85.3 million in marketable securities. Net cash provided by investing
activities in 2005 was primarily due to sales and maturities of $98.0 million of marketable securities largely offset by the purchase of $91.5
million of marketable securities and the purchase of $963,000 of property and equipment. Net cash used in investing activities in 2004 was also
primarily due to the purchase of $94.0 million in marketable securities, payments for a business acquisition of $17.6 million and to a lesser
extent the purchase of $791,000 in property and equipment offset by the sale and maturity of $88.3 million in marketable securities. In 2007, we
expect our capital expenditures to be significantly higher than historical levels due primarily to the build out of our new headquarters office
under a lease that was entered into in November 2006. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financing Activities

Net cash generated by financing activities was $3.1 million for 2006, $2.1 million for 2005, and $4.0 million for 2004. In 2006, cash generated
by financing activities was primarily due to the exercise of employee stock options and the purchase of common stock under the employee stock
purchase plan of $3.1 million. In 2005, net cash generated by financing activities was primarily due to the exercise of employee stock options
and the purchase of common stock under the employee stock purchase plan of $3.1 million, offset by $0.9 million of common stock repurchases
by the Company. In 2004, net cash generated by financing activities of $4.0 million was primarily due to the exercise of employee stock options
and the purchase of common stock under the employee stock purchase plan.

Commitments

The following summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2006 and the effect these contractual obligations are expected to have on
our liquidity and cash flows in future periods (in thousands).

Payments Due By Period

Total
1 Year
or Less

1�3
Years

After
3 Years

Operating leases $ 5,777 $ 1,557 $ 1,988 $ 2,232
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These obligations are for noncancelable operating leases which relate primarily to the lease of our headquarters office in Redwood City,
California and international offices to carry out sales, marketing, research and development, and services operations.

Working Capital and Capital Expenditure Requirements

At December 31, 2006, we had stockholders� equity of $132.5 million and working capital of $118.2 million. Included as a reduction to working
capital is short-term deferred revenue of $13.4 million, which will not require settlement in cash, but will be recognized as revenue in the future.
We believe that our existing cash balances will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least the
next 12 months.

If we require additional capital resources to grow our business internally or to acquire complementary technologies and businesses at any time in
the future, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities. The sale of additional equity or debt securities could result in more dilution to
our stockholders. Financing arrangements may not be available to us, or may not be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us.

As noted above, we plan to make substantial investments in our business during 2007, including but not limited to such areas as (i) cost of
services, (ii) sales and marketing, (iii) research and development, and (iv) capital expenditures. We believe these investments and others are
essential to creating sustainable growth in our business in the future. Because these investments will likely precede any associated revenues, we
expect our working capital to decrease in the near term.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. (�FIN�) 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an Interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109. FIN No. 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by creating a framework for how companies should
recognize, measure, present, and disclose in their financial statements uncertain tax positions that they have taken or expect to take in a tax
return. FIN No. 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and is required to be adopted by the Company beginning in
the first quarter of fiscal 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of FIN No. 48 on our results of operations and financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value, provides a framework for measuring
fair value, and expands the disclosures required for fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting pronouncements that
require fair value measurements; it does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and is required to be adopted by the Company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2008. Although the Company will
continue to evaluate the application of SFAS No. 157, management does not currently believe adoption will have a material impact on the
Company�s results of operations or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities�. SFAS No. 159 permits
companies to choose to measure certain financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The standard requires that unrealized gains
and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected be reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the Company
beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008, although earlier adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting SFAS No. 159 on its consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Our financial results could be affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic conditions in foreign
markets. As most sales are currently made in U.S. dollars, a strengthening of the dollar could make our products less competitive in foreign
markets.

As of December 31, 2006, we held $15.4 million in cash and cash equivalents consisting of highly liquid investments having original maturity
dates of no more than 90 days. A decline in interest rates over time would reduce our interest income from our highly liquid marketable
securities. Based upon our balance of cash and cash equivalents, a decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points would cause a corresponding
decrease in our annual interest income of approximately $154,000. Due to the nature of our highly liquid cash equivalents, a change in interest
rates would not materially change the fair market value of our cash and cash equivalents.

As of December 31, 2006, we held $104.5 million in marketable securities, which consisted primarily of money market funds held by large
institutions in the U.S. and commercial paper. Our marketable securities were primarily invested in corporate bonds, government debt securities
maturing in less than eighteen months and auction-rate securities resetting in less than ninety days. The weighted average interest rate of our
portfolio was approximately 4.14% at December 31, 2006. A decline in interest rates over time would reduce our interest income from our
marketable securities. A decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points would cause a corresponding decrease in our annual interest income of
approximately $1.0 million. Due to the nature of our highly liquid cash equivalents, a change in interest rates would not materially change the
fair market value of our marketable securities.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
SupportSoft, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SupportSoft, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
SupportSoft, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006, SupportSoft, Inc. changed its method of accounting for share-based
payments in accordance with guidance provided in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payment.�

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of
SupportSoft, Inc.�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 12, 2007 expressed
an unqualified opinion on management�s assessment and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
San Jose, California
March 12, 2007
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SUPPORTSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands except share and per share data)

December 31,
2006 2005

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,369 $ 23,342
Marketable securities 104,522 97,321
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $373 and $296 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively 15,144 17,437
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,894 2,451
Total current assets 137,929 140,551
Property and equipment, net 937 1,211
Goodwill 9,792 9,792
Intangible assets, net 3,155 3,994
Other assets 792 701
Total assets $ 152,605 $ 156,249
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 331 $ 1,030
Accrued compensation 2,112 2,669
Other accrued liabilities 3,813 2,985
Deferred revenue, less long-term portion 13,435 14,060
Total current liabilities 19,691 20,744
Deferred revenue�long-term portion 178 969
Other long-term liabilities 233 142
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock; par value $0.0001, 5,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 � �
Common stock; par value $0.0001, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 44,587,720 issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 43,627,075 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005 4 4
Additional paid-in capital 202,440 195,990
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (751 ) (645 )
Accumulated deficit (69,190 ) (60,955 )
Total stockholders� equity 132,503 134,394
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 152,605 $ 156,249

See accompanying notes.
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SUPPORTSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Revenue:
License fees $ 16,415 $ 32,737 $ 37,923
Maintenance 15,672 14,317 11,002
Services 12,941 14,877 11,692
Total revenue 45,028 61,931 60,617
Costs and expenses:
Cost of license fees 499 555 295
Cost of maintenance 1,225 988 418
Cost of services 13,599 13,128 9,592
Amortization of intangible assets 1,090 1,090 363
Research and development 9,247 11,185 9,746
Sales and marketing 23,336 25,159 23,965
General and administrative 10,163 8,618 6,454
In-process research and development � � 1,618
Total costs and expenses 59,159 60,723 52,451
Income (loss) from operations (14,131 ) 1,208 8,166
Interest income and other, net 6,383 3,619 2,298
Income (loss) before income taxes (7,748 ) 4,827 10,464
Provision for income taxes (487 ) (402 ) (310 )
Net income (loss) $ (8,235 ) $ 4,425 $ 10,154
Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.19 ) $ 0.10 $ 0.24
Shares used in computing basic net income (loss) per share 44,113 43,032 42,355
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.19 ) $ 0.10 $ 0.22
Shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per share 44,113 44,519 45,590

See accompanying notes.
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SUPPORTSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock
Additional
Paid-In

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive Accumulated

Total
Stockholders�

Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity
Balances at December 31, 2003 41,744,260 $ 4 $ 189,693 $ (157 ) $ (75,534 ) $ 114,006
Components of comprehensive income:
Net income � � � � 10,154 10,154
Unrealized loss on investments � � � (265 ) � (265 )
Foreign currency translation adjustment � � � (196 ) � (196 )
Comprehensive income 9,693
Compensation expense related to stock
options � � 183 � � 183
Issuance of common stock upon exercise
of stock options for cash 766,027 � 2,954 � � 2,954
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan 165,241 � 1,021 � � 1,021
Balances at December 31, 2004 42,675,528 $ 4 $ 193,851 $ (618 ) $ (65,380 ) $ 127,857
Components of comprehensive income:
Net income � � � � 4,425 4,425
Unrealized gain on investments � � � 152 � 152
Foreign currency translation adjustment � � � (179 ) � (179 )
Comprehensive income 4,398
Issuance of common stock upon exercise
of stock options for cash 959,016 � 2,162 � � 2,162
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan 185,129 � 899 � � 899
Repurchase of common stock (192,598 ) (922 ) (922 )
Balances at December 31, 2005 43,627,075 $ 4 $ 195,990 $ (645 ) $ (60,955 ) $ 134,394
Components of comprehensive income:
Net loss � � � � (8,235 ) (8,235 )
Unrealized gain on investments � � � 63 � 63
Foreign currency translation adjustment � � � (169 ) � (169 )
Comprehensive loss (8,341 )
Stock-based compensation expense 3,338 3,338
Issuance of common stock upon exercise
of stock options for cash 807,967 � 2,600 � � 2,600
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan 152,678 � 512 � � 512
Balances at December 31, 2006 44,587,720 $ 4 $ 202,440 $ (751 ) $ (69,190 ) $ 132,503

See accompanying notes.
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SUPPORTSOFT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ (8,235 ) $ 4,425 $ 10,154
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation 988 1,099 766
Stock-based compensation expenses 3,338 � 183
Amortization of intangible assets 1,090 1,090 363
In-process research and development � � 1,618
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net 2,293 (7,843 ) 2,985
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (443 ) 1,072 291
Other assets (91 ) (177 ) 195
Accounts payable (700 ) 686 (83 )
Accrued compensation (556 ) (87 ) 904
Other accrued liabilities 828 378 726
Other long-term liabilities 91 142 �
Deferred revenue (1,416 ) (1,612 ) (4,281 )
Other (223 ) (17 ) 673
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (3,036 ) (844 ) 14,494
Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (964 ) (963 ) (791 )
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired � � (17,562 )
Purchases of marketable securities (92,351 ) (91,493 ) (94,079 )
Sales and maturities of marketable securities 85,266 97,994 88,264
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (8,049 ) 5,538 (24,168 )
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuances of common stock 3,112 3,061 3,975
Repurchase of common stock � (922 ) �
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,112 2,139 3,975
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (7,973 ) 6,833 (5,699 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 23,342 16,509 22,208
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 15,369 $ 23,342 $ 16,509
Supplemental schedule of cash flow information:
Income taxes paid $ 294 $ 293 $ 247

See accompanying notes.
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SUPPORTSOFT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

SupportSoft, Inc. (�SupportSoft,� �the Company,� �We� or �Our�), was incorporated in the state of Delaware on December 3, 1997. We are a leading
provider of software and services that automate the resolution of technology problems.  Our solutions reduce technology support costs, improve
customer satisfaction and enable new revenue streams for organizations worldwide.  We recently expanded our offerings and now provides
technology support directly to consumers.

Our headquarters is located in Redwood City, California and we maintain offices in several other cities in the United States. We have
international operations in several countries around the world.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SupportSoft and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. SupportSoft has export sales from
the United States and has operations in India, Canada, Europe and the Asia/Pacific region. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Acquisition

On September 2, 2004, the Company acquired substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of Core Networks Incorporated (�Core Networks�).
The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and the operating results have been included in our consolidated financial statements since the
date of acquisition.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of SupportSoft�s wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries are translated from their respective functional currencies at exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Any
material resulting translation adjustments are reflected as a separate component of stockholders� equity in accumulated other comprehensive
income or loss. Realized foreign currency transaction gains and losses were not material during the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004.

Use of Estimates and Reclassifications

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ materially from these estimates. The Company has made certain reclassifications to conform to current year�s presentation.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents, marketable securities and
trade accounts receivable. Our investment portfolio is diversified and consists of investment grade securities. Our investment policy limits the
amount of credit risk exposure to any one issuer and in any one country except the United States. We are exposed to credit
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SUPPORTSOFT, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

risks in the event of default by the issuers to the extent of the amount recorded on the balance sheet. The credit risk in our trade accounts
receivable is substantially mitigated by our credit evaluation process, reasonably short collection terms and because the Company sells its
products primarily to large organizations in diversified industries.

Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount. We perform evaluations of our customers� financial condition and generally do
not require collateral. We make judgments as to our ability to collect outstanding receivables and provide allowances for the portion of
receivables when collection becomes doubtful. Provisions are made based upon a specific review of all significant outstanding invoices. For
those invoices not specifically provided for, provisions are recorded at differing rates, based upon the age of the receivable. In determining these
percentages, we analyze our historical collection experience and current payment trends. If the historical data we use to calculate the allowance
for doubtful accounts does not reflect the future ability to collect outstanding receivables, additional provisions for doubtful accounts may be
needed and the future results of operations could be materially affected.

The following table summarizes the allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Charged/
(Recovery) to
Costs and
Expenses

Write-
offs

Balance at
End
of Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2004 $ 735 $ (134 ) $ (154 ) $ 447
Year ended December 31, 2005 447 209 (360 ) 296
Year ended December 31, 2006 296 185 (108 ) 373

The following table lists customers representing greater than 10% of total account receivable, net as of December 31, 2006 and 2005:

% of Total
Accounts Receivable,
Net Years Ended
December 31,
2006 2005

Customer A 15 % 20 %
Customer B � 20 %

Included in accounts receivable and deferred revenue at December 31, 2006 is approximately $1.0 million related to advance maintenance
billings for customers who have elected to renew their maintenance contracts.
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Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

SupportSoft considers all liquid instruments with an original maturity at the date of purchase of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents and marketable securities consist primarily of money market funds, commercial paper, auction rate securities, corporate bonds and
notes and treasury bills issued by the United States government and its agencies. Our cash equivalents and marketable securities are classified as
available-for-sale, and are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income within
stockholders� equity on the consolidated balance sheets. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other than temporary on
available-for-sale securities are included in other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations. The amortized cost of debt
securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity, both of which are included in interest income.
SupportSoft recorded net unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities of $54,000 and $117,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Realized gains and losses are recorded using the specific identification method and were immaterial during the years ending
December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

We monitor our investments for impairment on a quarterly basis and determine whether a decline in fair value is other-than-temporary by
considering factors such as current economic and market conditions, the credit rating of the security�s issuer, the length of time an investment�s
fair value has been below our carrying value, and our ability and intent to hold investments to maturity. If an investment�s decline in fair value is
deemed to be other-than-temporary, we reduce its carrying value to its estimated fair value, as determined based on quoted market prices or
liquidation values. Declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary, if any, are recorded in operations as incurred.

The following is a summary of available-for-sale securities (in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses Fair Value

Cash $ 2,372 $ � $ � $ 2,372
Money market fund 22 � � 22
Commercial paper 35,390 � (30 ) 35,360
Federal agencies 2,000 � (1 ) 1,999
Corporate bonds 31,511 � (23 ) 31,488
Auction rate securities 48,650 � � 48,650

$ 119,945 $ � $ (54 ) $ 119,891
Classified as:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,372 $ � $ (3 ) $ 15,369
Marketable securities 104,573 � (51 ) 104,522

$ 119,945 $ � $ (54 ) $ 119,891
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses Fair Value

Cash $ 8,257 $ � $ � $ 8,257
Money market fund 625 � � 625
Commercial paper 16,725 � (3 ) 16,722
Federal agencies 1,000 � � 1,000
Corporate bonds 22,773 � (114 ) 22,659
Auction rate securities 71,400 � � 71,400

$ 120,780 $ � $ (117 ) $ 120,663
Classified as:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,345 $ � $ (3 ) $ 23,342
Marketable securities 97,435 � (114 ) 97,321

$ 120,780 $ � $ (117 ) $ 120,663

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of our available-for-sale debt securities held in marketable securities classified by the
stated maturity date of the security (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005

Due within one year $ 51,103 $ 56,371
Due within two years 4,769 �
Due within three years � �
Due after three years 48,650 40,950

$ 104,522 $ 97,321

Although SupportSoft�s investment portfolio in auction rate securities includes investments maturing after 3 years, these investments are highly
liquid and typically reset between 28 and 90 days and are therefore classified in marketable securities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation which is determined using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of 2 years for computer equipment and software, 3 years for furniture and fixtures, and the shorter of the estimated useful lives or the
lease term for leasehold improvements.

Goodwill

Goodwill resulted from the Company�s acquisition of Core Networks on September 2, 2004. The Company applies the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangibles Assets,� which prohibits the amortization of goodwill.
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We assess the impairment of goodwill annually or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the discounted future net cash flows expected to result from the use of
the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. Such impairment loss would be measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and its fair value. The estimate of cash flows is based upon, among other things, certain assumptions about expected
future operating performance and an appropriate discount rate determined by our management. Our estimates of discounted cash flows
may differ from actual cash flows due to, among other things, economic conditions, changes to the business model or changes in operating
performance. If we made different estimates, material differences may result in write-down of net long-lived and intangible assets, which would
be reflected by charges to our operating results for any period presented. At September 30, 2006, we concluded our annual evaluation for
impairment of goodwill and no impairment was recognized. We will continue to test for impairment during the third quarter of each year, or
earlier if indicators of impairment exist.

Intangible Assets

The Company records purchased intangible assets at fair value. The original cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of each asset. We assess the impairment of intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying amount
may not be recoverable. We perform an annual review to determine if the carrying value of the intangible asset is impaired, unless events or
circumstances indicate a potential impairment exists in which case a review is performed more often. The review considers facts and
circumstance, either internal or external, which indicate that the carrying value of the asset cannot be recovered. If and when indicators of
impairment exist, SupportSoft assesses the need to record an impairment loss, by comparing the undiscounted net cash flows associated with
related assets or group of assets over their remaining lives against their respective carrying amounts. Impairment, if any, is based on the excess
of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets.

As of December 31, 2006, intangible assets, in the amount of $2.9 million, net of amortization, consist of customer relationships, developed and
core technology, which are amortized over an estimated useful lives of 5 years. Included in intangible assets, in the aggregate amount of
$250,000, is the cost of obtaining a toll-free telephone number which does not have a finite useful life.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants� (AICPA) Statement of Position (�SOP�) 97-2,
Software Revenue Recognition, as amended by SOP 98-4 and SOP 98-9. License revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are
met:

•  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

•  Delivery has occurred;

•  Collection is considered probable; and
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•  The fees are fixed or determinable.

SupportSoft considers all arrangements with payment terms longer than 90 days, not to be fixed or determinable. If the fee is determined not to
be fixed or determinable, revenue is recognized as payments become due from the customer.

License revenue is comprised of fees for perpetual and term licenses of our software. Perpetual license revenue is recognized using the residual
method, in compliance with SOP 98-9 for arrangements in which licenses are sold with multiple elements. We allocate revenues on these
licenses based upon the fair value of each undelivered element including undelivered maintenance, consulting and training. The determination of
fair value is based upon vendor specific objective evidence (VSOE). VSOE for maintenance is based upon separate renewals of maintenance
from customers. VSOE for consulting or training is based upon separate sales of these services to customers. Assuming all other revenue
recognition criteria are met, the difference between the total arrangement fee and the amount deferred for each undelivered element is
recognized as license revenue. In perpetual arrangements that include contractual obligations such as rights to unspecified future products,
license revenue is recognized ratably over the contract period.

Term licenses are sold with maintenance for which SupportSoft does not have VSOE to determine fair value for maintenance fees. As a result,
license revenue for term licenses is recognized ratably over the duration of the agreement. License revenue in the accompanying financial
statements includes maintenance for term licenses. We do not allocate maintenance revenue from term licenses to maintenance revenue, as we
do not believe there is an allocation methodology that provides a meaningful and supportable allocation between license and maintenance
revenues. Services revenue associated with the term licenses are recognized ratably over the period associated with the initial payment, generally
one year.

We provide resellers with the right to sublicense our software to end user customers. Generally, we recognize revenue from our arrangements
with resellers when we receive persuasive evidence that the reseller has actually sublicensed the software to a named end user (sell-through),
assuming all other criteria for revenue recognition have been met. The forms of sell-through acceptable to us include one or more of the
following:  i) a copy of the agreement or license between the reseller and the end user, ii) a purchase order from the end user to the reseller, iii) a
written communication from the reseller specifically identifying the end user, or iv) delivery made directly by SupportSoft to the end user.
Whether the license revenue is then recognized immediately or ratably depends upon the terms of the arrangements with the reseller regarding
the sublicense (i.e. perpetual license or term license). If a reseller is not deemed creditworthy, revenue otherwise recognizable is deferred until
cash is received. When licensing arrangements with resellers include guaranteed minimum amounts due, revenue is recognized ratably over the
term of the arrangement commencing when payments are made or become due.

Maintenance revenue is primarily comprised of revenue from post-contract technical support services, which includes software product updates.
Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance period, which is generally one year. We invoice customers who
elect to renew their maintenance agreements. An equal amount is recorded as accounts receivable and deferred revenue.

Services revenue is primarily comprised of revenue from professional services such as consulting, training and hosting fees. Arrangements are
evaluated to determine whether those services are essential to
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the functionality of other elements of the arrangement. In the event services are considered essential to the functionality of other elements of the
arrangement, revenue under the arrangement is recognized using contract accounting. Non-essential consulting and training revenues are
generally recognized as the services are performed or project milestones are accepted by the customer. When non-essential services are bundled
in a term licensing arrangement, revenue from the services is recognized ratably over the period associated with the initial payment, generally
one year.

In connection with licensing arrangements we may also provide hosting of our own software, a service for which SupportSoft does not have
VSOE currently. If hosting services are sold with perpetual licenses, license revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the hosting contract.
Hosting revenue is also recognized ratably over the duration of the hosting contract. Consulting services sold in conjunction with arrangements
that include licenses and hosting services are recognized ratably over the duration of the hosting term.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are charged to operations as incurred. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86, �Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed,� requires the capitalization of certain software development costs
subsequent to the establishment of technological feasibility. Based on SupportSoft�s product development process, technological feasibility is
established upon the completion of a working model. Costs incurred by SupportSoft between the completion of the working model and the point
at which the product is ready for general release have been insignificant. Accordingly, SupportSoft has charged all such costs to research and
development expense in the accompanying statements of operations. SupportSoft did not incur any cost related to software developed or for
software obtained for internal use as defined in SOP 98-1.

Sales Commissions

Sales commissions are the incremental costs that are directly associated with non-cancelable contracts with customers and consist of
commissions paid to the Company�s sales personnel. If the customer contract is a perpetual license, the commission expense attributable to the
license fees are recorded in the month license revenue is recognized. For term licenses and other ratable license arrangements, sales commissions
are deferred and amortized over the non-cancelable terms of the related customer contracts, which are typically 12 to 36 months. The sales
commissions, which are paid in the month following the time an order is consummated or when customer payment is received, are a direct and
incremental cost of the revenue arrangements. The deferred commission amounts are recoverable through the future revenue streams under the
non-cancelable customer contracts. Commissions payments made to sales personnel are non-refundable unless amounts due from a customer are
determined to be uncollectible in which cash commissions paid are generally recoverable by the Company.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are recorded as sales and marketing expense in the period in which they are incurred. Advertising expense was $725,000,
$224,000, and $357,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
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Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share are presented in conformity with the Financial Accounting Standards Board�s (�FASB�) Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, �Earnings Per Share� (�FAS 128�), for all periods presented. Basic net income (loss) per share is
computed using net income (loss) and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted net
income (loss) per share is computed using net income and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, including the effect
from the potential issuance of common stock such as stock issuable pursuant to the exercise of stock options using the treasury stock method
when dilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Net income (loss) $ (8,235 ) $ 4,425 $ 10,154
Basic:
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 44,113 43,032 42,355
Shares used in computing basic net income per share 44,113 43,032 42,355
Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.19 ) $ 0.10 $ 0.24
Diluted:
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 44,113 43,032 42,355
Add: Common equivalent shares outstanding � 1,487 3,235
Shares used in computing diluted net income per share 44,113 44,519 45,590
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.19 ) $ 0.10 $ 0.22

In 2006, SupportSoft has not included the effect from the potential issuance of common stock as a result of the exercise of stock options as the
issuance of these shares would be anti-dilutive due to the net loss incurred in the current period.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss relate entirely to accumulated foreign currency translation losses and unrealized
losses on available-for-sale securities. Accumulated currency translation losses were $697,000 and $528,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, and accumulated unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities were $54,000 and $117,000 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment,� (�SFAS
123R�) which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all stock-based payment awards, including employee stock
options and
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employee stock purchases from employee stock purchase plan. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based payments to
employees using the intrinsic value method under APB Opinion No. 25, as permitted by SFAS 123R, and, as such, generally recognized no
compensation cost for employee stock options or employees stock purchases.

SupportSoft elected the modified prospective transition method for adopting SFAS 123R which required the application of the accounting
standard as of January 1, 2006, the first day of the Company�s 2006 fiscal year. Under this transition method, compensation cost recognized
includes the applicable amounts of: (a) compensation cost for all stock-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of December 31,
2005 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123R and previously presented in the
pro-forma footnote disclosures, and (b) compensation cost of all stock-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006 based on the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the new provisions of SFAS 123R. Prior periods have not been restated to reflect the impact
of SFAS 123R.

Determining Fair Value

Valuation and Attribution Method: SupportSoft estimates the fair value of stock options granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
Stock options vest on a graded schedule; however the Company recognizes the expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period
of the entire award, net of estimated forfeitures and subject to the minimum expense requirements of SFAS 123R. Compensation cost recognized
is at least equal to the portion of the grant-date fair value of the award that is vested at that date.

Risk-free Interest Rate: The Company bases its risk-free interest rate upon the yield currently available on US Treasury zero coupon issues for
the expected term of the employee stock options.

Expected Term: The Company�s expected term represents the period that the Company�s stock options are expected to be outstanding and is
determined based on historical experience of similar stock options considering the contractual terms of the stock options, vesting schedules and
expectations of future employee behavior.

Expected Volatility: The Company�s expected volatility represents the amount by which the stock price is expected to fluctuate throughout the
period that the stock option is outstanding. The Company bases its expected volatility on a weighted average calculation combining both
historical and implied volatilities as it believes that this combination is more representative of future stock price trends than historical volatility
alone. The implied volatility factor included in this computation is based upon traded options on the Company�s stock.

Estimated Forfeitures: SFAS 123R requires that the stock option expense recognized be based on awards that are ultimately expected to vest,
and therefore a forfeiture rate should be applied at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods when actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures only as they occurred. Commencing in 2006, the
Company has estimated its forfeitures based on historical experience.

Expected Dividend: The Company uses a dividend yield of zero, as it has never paid cash dividends and does not expect to pay dividends in the
future.
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The fair value of the Company�s stock-based awards was estimated using the following assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004:

Stock Option Plan Employee Stock Purchase Plan
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Risk-free interest rate 4.8 % 4.1 % 3.4 % 4.7 % 3.1 % 1.2 %
Expected term (in years) 3.9 4.0 4.0 0.5 to 2.0 0.5 to 2.0 0.5 to 2.0
Volatility 53.5 % 70.9 % 84.0 % 54.1 % 74.6 % 79.5 %
Estimated forfeitures 8.0 % 0 % 0 % 8.0 % 0 % 0 %
Expected dividend 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 %
Weighted average fair value $ 2.01 $ 2.75 $ 4.48 $ 1.66 $ 2.83 $ 3.16

Tax Effects of Stock-Based Payments

On November 10, 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position No. SFAS-123R-3 �Transition Election
Related to Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards� which provides for an alternative transition method to calculate the tax
effects of stock-based compensation expense pursuant to SFAS 123R. We adopted the alternative transition method provided in the FASB Staff
Position for calculating the tax effects of stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123(R) in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The alternative
transition method includes simplified methods to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool (APIC pool) related to the
tax effects of employee stock-based compensation, and to determine the subsequent impact on the APIC pool and Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows of the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation awards that are outstanding upon adoption of SFAS 123(R). The adoption
did not have a material impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

Stock Compensation Expense

The Company recorded the following stock-based compensation expense for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Ended December 31,
2006

Stock option compensation expense recognized in:
Cost of services $ 292
Research and development 316
Sales and marketing 774
General and administrative 1,572

2,954
ESPP compensation expense recognized in:
Cost of services 87
Research and development 106
Sales and marketing 125
General and administrative 66

384
Stock-based compensation expense included in total costs and expenses $ 3,338
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Included above was $238,000, of stock-based compensation expense related to the acceleration of the stock options awarded to the Company�s
former chief executive officer in connection with a transition agreement dated March 12, 2006. Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, provided
the former CEO remained an employee of the Company, on the date the Board of Directors appointed a new CEO, all then outstanding and
unvested options would be immediately vested. A new CEO was appointed on April 6, 2006 and vesting of 115,625 shares was accelerated.

There was no stock-based compensation expense recognized for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

As a result of adopting SFAS 123R, the Company�s loss before income taxes and net loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $3.3 million
higher than if it had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended
December 31, 2006 would have both been $0.08 lower if the Company had not adopted SFAS 123R.

No income tax benefit was realized from stock option exercises during the year ended December 31, 2006. In accordance with SFAS 123R, we
present excess tax benefits from the exercise of stock options, if any, as cash flow from financing activities in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

The table below reflects the net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2006. Pro-forma information
required under SFAS 123R for periods prior to 2006 as if the Company has applied the fair value recognition provision under SFAS 123R is as
follows:

2006 2005 2004
Net income�as reported for the prior period(1) $ N/A $ 4,425 $ 10,154
Stock-based compensation expense relating to:
Stock options(2) (2,953 ) (20,540 ) (8,478 )
ESPP stock purchases(2) (385 ) (575 ) (1,042 )
Net income (loss), including the effect of stock-based compensation
expense(3) $ (8,235 ) $ (16,690 ) $ 634
Basic net income per share�as reported for the prior period N/A $ 0.10 $ 0.24
Basic net income (loss) per share�pro-forma, including the effect of
stock-based compensation $ (0.19 ) $ (0.39 ) $ 0.01
Diluted net income per share�as reported for the prior period N/A $ 0.10 $ 0.22
Diluted net income (loss) per share�pro-forma, including the effect of
stock-based compensation $ (0.19 ) $ (0.39 ) $ 0.01

(1)  Net income and net income per share prior to January 1, 2006 did not include stock-based compensation
expense for stock options and employee stock purchases under SFAS 123R because the Company had not adopted the
recognition provisions of SFAS 123R.

(2)  Stock-based compensation expense, net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share prior to January 1, 2006
is calculated based on the pro-forma application of SFAS 123R.

(3)  Net income and net income (loss) per share prior to fiscal 2006 represents pro-forma information including the
effect of stock-based compensation based on SFAS 123R.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, our Board of Directors approved the acceleration of vesting of certain unvested and out-of-money stock
options with exercise prices equal to or greater than $5.00 per
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share previously awarded to employees, including executive officers, under our equity compensation plans. The acceleration of vesting was
effective for stock options outstanding as of December 21, 2005. Options to purchase approximately 3.0 million shares of common stock or 32%
of our then outstanding unvested stock options were subject to this acceleration. The weighted average price of the options that were accelerated
was $7.02. The options accelerated excluded options previously granted to Board of Directors, employees who had terminations pending and
foreign employees who opted out of the acceleration for tax reasons. For all officers and vice-presidents (non-officers) the acceleration was
accompanied by restrictions imposed on any shares that may in the future be purchased through the exercise of accelerated stock options. Those
restrictions prevent the sale of any such shares prior to the date such shares would have originally vested had the optionee been employed on
such date (whether or not the optionee is actually an employee at that time). The purpose of the acceleration was to enable us to avoid
recognizing compensation expense associated with these options in our Consolidated Statements of Operations upon the adoption of SFAS 123R
on January 1, 2006. The acceleration of the vesting of these stock options resulted in an approximate total savings of $12.0 million of future
compensation expense that would have impacted expenses through the third quarter of 2009.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases, and operating losses and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be reversed or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. A
valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets, if it is more likely than not, that such assets will not be
realized.

Warranties and Indemnifications

The Company generally provides a warranty for its software products and services to its customers and accounts for its warranties under the
FASB�s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies� (�FAS No. 5�). Our standard warranty period is 90
days, but warranty periods can sometimes be longer and vary from customer to customer. In the event there is a breach of such warranties,
SupportSoft generally is obligated to correct the product or service to conform to the warranty provision or, if SupportSoft is unable to do so, the
customer is entitled to seek a refund of the purchase price of the product or service. In certain contracts a material breach of warranty may
involve penalties payable to the customer. SupportSoft did not provide for a warranty accrual as of December 31, 2006 or December 31, 2005.
To date, SupportSoft�s product warranty expense has not been significant.

The Company generally agrees to indemnify its customers against legal claims that its software products infringe certain third-party intellectual
property rights and accounts for its indemnification obligations under FAS No. 5. To date, SupportSoft has not been required to make any
payment resulting from infringement claims asserted against our customers and has not recorded any related accruals.
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Segment Information

The Company conducts its business in one segment: providing software and related services that automate the resolution of technology
problems. Revenue from customers located outside the United States was approximately $10.3 million, $12.9 million, and $6.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Sales by the Company to customers in different geographic areas, expressed as a percentage of revenue, for the periods ended were:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Americas 78 % 80 % 91 %
Asia Pacific 1 1 1
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa 21 19 8
Total 100 % 100 % 100 %

Sales by the Company to customers that exceeded 10% of our total revenue, expressed as a percentage of total revenue, in each of the years in
the three year period ended December 31, 2006 were:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Customer A � � 13 %
Customer B � � 10 %
Customer C � � �

Note 2.   Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005

Computer equipment and software $ 10,763 $ 10,092
Furniture and office equipment 658 615

11,421 10,707
Accumulated depreciation (10,484 ) (9,496 )

$ 937 $ 1,211

Depreciation expense was $988,000, $1.1 million, and $766,000, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Note 3. Business Combinations

On September 2, 2004, as part of the Company�s strategy to expand our product portfolio, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of
Core Networks Incorporated and certain liabilities for approximately $16.9 million in cash (the �Acquisition�). Accordingly, the operations of
Core Networks have been included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations from September 2, 2004
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Note 3. Business Combinations (Continued)

onward. Core Networks specialized in software products for network monitoring, management and activation of advanced digital services for
DSL and cable broadband providers. The purchase price for Core Networks exceeded the fair value of Core Networks� net tangible and intangible
assets acquired; as a result, we recorded goodwill in connection with this transaction.

Upon consummation of the Acquisition, the Company charged to expense $1.6 million representing acquired in-process research and
development that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use. The amount of purchase price allocated to
acquire in-process research and development was determined by estimating viable products, estimating the resulting net cash flows from such
products, and discounting the net cash flows back to their present value. The discount rate included a factor that took into account the inherent
risk and expected growth of in-process products.

The total purchase price is summarized as follows (in thousands):

September 2,
2004

Cash consideration $ 16,850
Acquisition costs 713
Total purchase price $ 17,563

An allocation among the tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities acquired (including acquired in-process research and
development) is summarized as follows. The financial information presented includes purchase accounting adjustments to the tangible and
intangible assets (in thousands):

Amount
Amortization
Period

Cash $ 1 �
Accounts receivable 158 �
Net fixed assets 591 2 years
Accrued vacation (44 ) �
Amortizable intangible assets:
Developed and core technology 4,360 5 years
Customer relationships 1,087 5 years
In-process research and development 1,618 Expensed
Goodwill 9,792 Indefinite
Purchase Price $ 17,563

The goodwill balance recorded in the Company�s Canadian subsidiary is amortized and deducted for Canadian tax purposes but not for financial
statement purposes.
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Note 3. Business Combinations (Continued)

The results of operations of Core Networks were included in our consolidated statements of operations from September 2, 2004, the date of the
Acquisition. If we had acquired the assets of Core Networks at the beginning of the periods presented, our unaudited pro forma net revenue, net
income and net income per share would have been as follows (in thousands, except per share information):

For the year ended December 31, 2004 (unaudited):

Revenue $ 61,858
Net income 5,780
Basic net income per share 0.14
Diluted net income per share 0.13

Note 4.  Intangible assets

As a result of the Acquisition, we recorded $5.4 million of amortizable intangible assets with useful lives of 5 years. Amortization expense
related to amortizable intangible assets was $1.1 million, $1.1 million, and $363,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. Amortization expense for the next five years and thereafter, as of December 31, 2006, is expected to be as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,

Amortizable
Intangible
Assets

2007 $ 1,124
2008 1,124
2009 657
Total expected amortization expense $ 2,905

In December 2006, the Company acquired the use of a toll-free telephone number for cash consideration of $250,000. This asset has an
indefinite useful life. The intangible asset will be tested for impairment annually or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The following table summarized the components of intangible assets (in thousands).

Years as of December 31,
2006 2005

Amortizable intangible assets $ 5,519 $ 5,484
Accumulated amortization (2,614 ) (1,490 )
Indefinite-life intangible assets 250 �
Total intangible assets, net $ 3,155 $ 3,994

Note 5. Commitments and Contingencies

Headquarters office lease.  In November 2006, the Company entered into a noncancelable lease agreement for its new
headquarters office facility located in Redwood City, California. The lease commences on January 1, 2007 and ends
on July 31, 2012. The annual fixed rent will be $738,000, $760,000, $783,000, $783,000, $805,000 and $483,000 for
the years ended 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively, as long as the Company is not in default under
the term of the lease. In addition to base rent, commencing on the first anniversary of the lease and for each year
thereafter, the Company will pay as
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Note 5. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

additional rent, with an amount equal to its proportionate share, or 27% initially, of the amount exceeding the landlord�s operating expenses
incurred in calendar 2007. The Company issued an unsecured irrevocable standby letter of credit of $400,000 to the landlord as a security
deposit under the lease. If the Company is in material compliance with the lease, the deposit amount may be reduced to $300,000 on February 1,
2009, $200,000 on February 1, 2010, and $100,000 on February 1, 2011.

Other facility leases.   The Company leases its facilities under noncancelable operating lease agreements, which expire at
various dates through 2010. Facility rent expense pursuant to all operating lease agreements was approximately $1.5
million, $1.8 million, and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, minimum payments due under all noncancelable lease agreements including our new headquarters lease were as
follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,
Operating
Leases

2007 $ 1,557
2008 1,011
2009 977
2010 944
2011 805
thereafter 483
Total minimum lease and principal payments $ 5,777

Tax contingencies

We are required to make periodic filings in the states where we are deemed to have a presence for tax purposes. We have undergone state audits
in the past and have paid assessments arising from these audits. To date, such amounts have not been material. We evaluate estimated losses that
could arise from similar assessments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies.� We
consider such factors as the degree of probability of an unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of loss.

Legal contingencies

Between December 2004 and January 2005, several purported securities class action suits were filed in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California against us, our former Chief Executive Officer, Radha R. Basu, and our former Chief Financial Officer, Brian M.
Beattie. These actions were consolidated on March 22, 2005 as In re SupportSoft, Inc. Securities Litigation, Civil Action No.: c 04-5222 SI. The
consolidated complaint alleges generally violations of certain federal securities laws and seeks unspecified damages on behalf of a class of
purchasers of our common stock between January 20, 2004 and October 1, 2004. Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that defendants made
false and misleading statements concerning our business and guidance for the third quarter 2004, purportedly violating Sections 10(b) and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. On June 1, 2006, this action was certified to proceed as a
class action on behalf of all persons and entities who purchased or otherwise acquired the securities of the Company from January 29, 2004 to
October 1, 2004 and who were allegedly damaged thereby. The case is currently in discovery. A trial date has been set for October 29, 2007.
Defendants intend to vigorously defend themselves against the consolidated lawsuit. While we cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the
litigation, we believe that we have meritorious defenses to such claims.
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Note 5. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

In December 2005, a purported derivative stockholder complaint was filed in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San
Mateo captioned White v. Vase et al., No. Civ. 451677. This complaint pursues claims�derivatively and on behalf of the Company as a nominal
defendant�against certain of our directors and former directors: Radha R. Basu, Manuel Diaz, Kevin C. Eichler, Edward S. Russell and James
Thanos. The derivative complaint alleges, among other things, that the director-defendants harmed us by making or permitting us to make false
and misleading statements between January 20, 2004 and October 1, 2004 concerning our business and guidance for the third quarter 2004 and
by purportedly exposing us to liability for securities fraud in violation of their fiduciary duties. On October 4, 2006, the court denied the
defendants� demurrer to the plaintiffs� first amended complaint. The defendants� answered this complaint on November 6, 2006. The case is
currently in discovery. While we cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the litigation, we believe we have meritorious defenses to such
claims.

In November 2001, a class action lawsuit was filed against us and two of our officers in the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York. The lawsuit alleged that our registration statement and prospectus dated July 18, 2000 for the issuance and initial public offering
of 4,250,000 shares of our common stock contained material misrepresentations and/or omissions related to alleged inflated commissions
received by the underwriters of the offering. The defendants named in the lawsuit are SupportSoft, Radha Basu, Brian Beattie, Credit Suisse
First Boston Corporation, Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. and FleetBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. The lawsuit seeks unspecified damages as well as
interest, fees and costs. Similar complaints have been filed against 55 underwriters and more than 300 other companies and other individual
officers and directors of those companies. All of the complaints against the underwriters, issuers and individuals have been consolidated for
pre-trial purposes before U.S. District Court Judge Scheindlin of the Southern District of New York. On June 26, 2003, the plaintiffs announced
that a proposed settlement between the issuer defendants and their directors and officers had been reached. Under the proposed settlement, which
is subject to court approval, our insurance carrier would be responsible for any payments other than attorneys� fees prior to June 1, 2003. A final
settlement approval hearing on the proposed issuer settlement was held on April 24, 2006. The district court took the matter under submission
and has not yet ruled. Meanwhile the consolidated case against the underwriters has proceeded. On October 13, 2004, the district court certified
a class. On December 5, 2006, however, the Second Circuit reversed, holding that a class could not be certified. The Second Circuit�s holding,
while directly affecting only the underwriters, raises some doubt as to whether the proposed issuer settlement will be approved in its present
form. On January 5, 2007, plaintiffs petitioned the Second Circuit for rehearing of the Second Circuit�s decision. On January 24, 2007, the
Second Circuit asked the underwriter defendants to respond to the petition by February 7, 2007. On February 7, 2007, the underwriters filed their
response. While we cannot predict with certainty the outcome of the litigation or whether the settlement will be approved, we believe that the
claims against us and our officers are without merit.

We are also subject to other routine legal proceedings, as well as demands, claims and threatened litigation that arise in the normal course of our
business. The ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain, and either unfavorable or favorable outcomes could have a material negative
impact. Regardless of outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on SupportSoft because of defense costs, diversion of management
resources and other factors.
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Note 6.  Restructuring Obligations and Other Charges

In 2006, in connection with a business review conducted by SupportSoft�s new Chief Executive Officer, the Company reduced its workforce by
25 employees, or approximately 10% of its workforce at that time, designed to match staffing with its new initiatives. As a result, the Company
recorded a restructuring charge of $817,000 in 2006. The restructuring charge was comprised of severance costs and other personnel-related
termination costs. Restructuring expenses included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations were $33,000 for cost of maintenance,
$163,000 for cost of services, $40,000 for research and development, $386,000 for sales and marketing and $195,000 for general and
administrative. Cash payments of $689,000 were made against those obligations.

In 2005, the Company�s management performed a review of its business operations and realigned its resources and go-to-market strategies to
help maximize future revenue opportunities. As a result of this business review, the Company implemented a restructuring plan that included the
termination of 27 employees, or approximately 10% of its workforce at that time, and closure of various offices worldwide. All of the employees
were terminated as of December 31, 2005. As a result of the restructuring plan, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $645,000 for
severance costs and lease termination-related costs in 2005.

The following table summarizes activity associated with the restructuring and related expenses incurred for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 (in thousands):

Severance(1) Facilities(2) Total
Restructuring costs incurred in 2005 $ 456 $ 189 $ 645
Cash payments (346 ) (34 ) (380 )
Restructuring obligations, December 31, 2005 $ 110 $ 155 $ 265
Restructuring costs incurred in 2006 $ 817 $ � $ 817
Cash payments (799 ) (155 ) (954 )
Restructuring obligations, December 31, 2006 $ 128 $ 0 $ 128

(1)  Severance costs include those expenses related to severance pay and related employee benefit obligations.

(2)  Facilities costs include obligations under non-cancelable leases for facilities that we will no longer occupy, as
well as penalties associated with early terminations of leases and disposal of fixed assets. The related leases are short
term in nature expiring in less than one year. No sublease income has been included.

Note 7. Stockholders� Equity

Common Stock

At December 31, 2006, SupportSoft has reserved 14,922,969 and 1,908,164 shares of common stock for issuance pursuant to stock option and
employee stock purchase plans, respectively.

On April 27, 2005, the Company�s board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 outstanding shares of the Company�s common
stock. In the second quarter of 2005, the Company repurchased 192,598 shares of outstanding common stock at a cost of $922,294 or an average
cost of $4.76 per share, excluding commissions. There were no repurchases in 2006. Therefore, as of December 31,
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Note 7. Stockholders� Equity (Continued)

2006, the maximum number of shares remaining that can be repurchased under this program was 1,807,402.

Stock Option Plans

In 1998, SupportSoft adopted the 1998 Stock Option Plan (the �Plan�). Under this Plan, up to 9,424,434 shares of SupportSoft�s common stock
may be granted as options or sold to eligible participants. Under the Plan, options to purchase common stock may be granted at no less than 85%
of the fair value on the date of the grant (110% of fair value in certain instances), as determined by the Board of Directors. Options under the
Plan can be immediately exercisable at the Board of Directors� discretion; however, shares issued are subject to SupportSoft�s right to repurchase
such shares at the original issuance price, which lapses in a series of installments measured from the vesting commencement date of the option.

In February 2000, the Board of Directors approved SupportSoft�s 2000 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the �2000 Incentive Plan�). A total of
4,000,000 shares of common stock were initially reserved for issuance to eligible participants under the 2000 Incentive Plan. On January 1 of
each year, the number of shares reserved automatically increases by the lesser of 2,000,000 shares, 5% of outstanding shares, or an amount
determined by the board of directors. On January 1, 2006, the shares reserved under the 2000 Incentive Plan were automatically increased by
2,000,000 shares. Under both of SupportSoft�s option plans, options generally vest over a 48-month period from the date of grant and have a
maximum term of 10 years. In the fourth quarter of 2005, SupportSoft began issuing only non-statutory options with a contractual term of 7
years.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately 1.3 million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under both of these stock
option plans.
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Note 7. Stockholders� Equity (Continued)

The following table represents stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006:

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value
(in �000�s)

Outstanding options at December 31, 2003 8,318,781 $ 6.26
Granted 3,680,132 $ 7.60
Exercised (766,027 ) $ 3.80
Forfeited (760,197 ) $ 9.83
Outstanding options at December 31, 2004 10,472,689 $ 6.65 8.04 $ 16,675
Granted 2,209,385 $ 4.90
Exercised (959,016 ) $ 2.25
Forfeited (1,598,920 ) $ 8.05
Outstanding options at December 31, 2005 10,124,138 $ 6.46 7.37 $ 3,573
Granted 7,102,965 $ 4.44
Exercised (807,967 ) $ 4.71
Forfeited (2,838,262 ) $ 7.64
Outstanding options at December 31, 2006 13,580,874 $ 5.33 6.44 $ 13,048
Options vested and expected to vest 13,459,193 $ 5.34 6.44 $ 12,925
Outstanding exercisable at the end of the period 6,593,567 $ 6.27 6.44 $ 5,734

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value that would have been received by the option holders
had they all exercised their options on December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004. This amount will change based on the fair market value of the
Company�s stock. The total aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under the Company�s stock options plans was $1.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The total fair value of options vested is $3.1 million as of December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2006, there was $14.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to existing options outstanding which is expected to
be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.5 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In February 2000, the Board of Directors approved SupportSoft�s 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the �2000 Purchase Plan�). A total of
2,000,000 shares of common stock were initially reserved for issuance under the 2000 Purchase Plan. On January 1 of each year, the number of
shares reserved automatically increases by the lesser of 2,000,000 shares, 3% of the outstanding shares, or an amount determined by the Board
of Directors. For 2006, the Board of Directors elected to have zero shares added to the 2000 Purchase Plan. The 2000 Purchase Plan permits
eligible employees to acquire shares of SupportSoft�s common stock through periodic payroll deductions of up to 15% of total compensation.
Purchases occur on the last day of each January and July following the end of each six-month purchase period. The price at which the common
stock may be purchased is 85% of the lesser of the fair market
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Note 7. Stockholders� Equity (Continued)

value of SupportSoft�s common stock at the beginning of the applicable offering period or the end of the applicable purchase period. Beginning
August 1, 2006, the offering period for all new participants in the 2000 Purchase Plan was reduced to six months. Prior to August 1, 2006, all
participants were enrolled in offering periods which could last up to 24 months and contained up to four separate purchase periods.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately 1.9 million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under this ESPP plan.

Note 8. Income Taxes

The components of our net income (loss) before income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

United States $ (9,514 ) $ 3,870 $ 9,839
Foreign 1,766 957 625
Total $ (7,748 ) $ 4,827 $ 10,464

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Current:
Federal $ � $ � $ �
State � (3 ) 120
Foreign 395 263 190
Total current 395 260 310
Deferred:
Foreign 92 142 �
Total provision for income taxes $ 487 $ 402 $ 310

The reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the Company�s effective income tax rate is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Provision at federal statutory rate $ (2,712 ) $ 1,689 $ 3,662
State taxes � (3 ) 120
Permanent differences/other 35 72 134
Stock-based compensation (4 ) (472 ) (1,060 )
Federal valuation allowance (utilized)/provided 3,089 (954 ) (2,736 )
Foreign rate differential 79 70 190
Provision for income taxes $ 487 $ 402 $ 310

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
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purposes. Significant components of the Company�s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005

Deferred tax assets:
Accruals and reserves $ 1,743 $ 580
Capitalized research and development 5 �
Deferred revenue 829 1,046
Net operating loss carryforwards 18,045 15,034
Research and development tax credits 3,973 3,958
Capitalized research and development 45 66
Intangible assets 2,647 2,724
Fixed assets 293 328
Gross deferred tax assets 27,580 23,736
Valuation allowance (27,378 ) (23,590 )
Total deferred tax assets 202 146
Intangible assets (436 ) (288 )
Total deferred tax liabilities (436 ) (288 )
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (234 ) $ (142 )

The Financial Accounting Standards Board�s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 �Accounting for Income Taxes� provides for
the recognition of deferred tax assets if realization of such assets is more likely than not to occur. Based upon the weight of available evidence,
which includes its historical operating performance, reported cumulative net losses since inception and difficulty in accurately forecasting its
results, the Company provided a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets. The Company reassesses the need for its valuation
allowance on a quarterly basis.

The net valuation allowance (increased) decreased by approximately $(3.8) million, and $677,000, during the years ended December 31, 2006,
and 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $48.0 million and $27.9
million, respectively. The Company also had federal and state research and development credit carryforwards of approximately $2.3 million and
$2.2 million, respectively. The federal net operating loss and credit carryforwards will expire at various dates beginning in 2018 through 2026, if
not utilized. The state net operating loss carryforwards will expire at various dates beginning in 2007 through 2016, if not utilized. The state
research and development credit carryforwards do not have an expiration date.

Utilization of the net operating loss carryforwards and credits may be subject to substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change
limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in the
expiration of net operating losses and credits before utilization.
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The Company�s India based subsidiary was granted a tax holiday related to its research and development activities. The tax holiday expires in
2009. The tax holiday has an immaterial impact on the current year financial statements.

Cumulative unremitted foreign earnings that are considered to be indefinitely reinvested outside the United States and on which no U.S. taxes
have been provided were approximately $2.6 million at December 31, 2006. If such earnings were distributed, the Company would not accrue
any additional taxes due to the full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets.

Note 9. Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments

The gross unrealized losses related to the Company�s portfolio of available-for-sale securities were primarily due to a decrease in the fair value of
debt securities as result of an increase in interest rates during 2006. The Company has determined that the gross unrealized losses on its
available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2006 are temporary in nature. The Company has reviewed its investment portfolio to identify
and evaluate investments that have indications of possible impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary include the
magnitude of the decline in market value, the length of time the market value has been below cost (or adjusted cost), credit quality, and the
Company�s ability and intent to hold the securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.

The following table sets forth the unrealized losses for the Company investments as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

In Loss Position
Less Than 12 Months

In Loss Position
More Than 12
Months Total In Loss Position

Description Fair Value
Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses Fair Value

Unrealized
Losses

Commercial paper $ 35,360 $ (30 ) $ � $ � $ 35,360 $ (30 )
Corporate bonds $ 31,488 $ (23 ) $ � $ � $ 31,488 $ (23 )
Federal agencies $ 1,999 $ (1 ) $ � $ � $ 1,999 $ (1 )
Total $ 68,847 $ (54 ) $ � $ � $ 68,847 $ (54 )
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Note 10. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly financial information for 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter Ended
Mar. 31,
2006

June 30,
2006

Sept. 30,
2006

Dec. 31,
2006

(in thousands, except per share data)
Statements of Operations Data:
License fees $ 2,051 $ 3,483 $ 4,479 $ 6,402
Maintenance 3,929 3,893 3,917 3,933
Services 2,257 3,388 3,462 3,834
Total revenue 8,237 10,764 11,858 14,169
Cost of license fees 104 109 119 167
Cost of maintenance 253 261 349 362
Cost of services 2,890 3,083 3,606 4,020
Research and development 2,525 2,332 2,267 2,123
Sales and marketing 5,134 5,847 6,013 6,342
General and administrative 2,130 2,859 2,689 2,485
Loss from operations (5,070 ) (3,999 ) (3,457 ) (1,605 )
Net loss (3,932 ) (2,536 ) (1,687 ) (80 )
Basic net loss per share $ (0.09 ) $ (0.06 ) $ (0.04 ) $ (0.00 )
Diluted net loss per share $ (0.09 ) $ (0.06 ) $ (0.04 ) $ (0.00 )

Fiscal Year 2005 Quarter Ended
Mar. 31,
2005

June 30,
2005

Sept. 30,
2005

Dec. 31,
2005

(in thousands, except per share data)
Statements of Operations Data:
License fees $ 9,022 $ 9,325 $ 5,404 $ 8,986
Maintenance 3,393 3,622 3,569 3,733
Services 3,710 4,062 4,013 3,092
Total revenue 16,125 17,009 12,986 15,811
Cost of license fees 190 127 123 115
Cost of maintenance 164 269 301 254
Cost of services 3,132 3,545 3,229 3,222
Research and development 2,933 2,902 2,700 2,650
Sales and marketing 6,842 6,223 5,304 6,790
General and administrative 2,189 2,119 2,110 2,200
Income (loss) from operations 418 1,586 (1,071 ) 275
Net income (loss) 1,233 2,132 (85 ) 1,145
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 0.03 $ 0.05 $ (0.00 ) $ 0.02
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 0.03 $ 0.05 $ (0.00 ) $ 0.02
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ITEM 9.  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES.

None.

ITEM 9A.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Disclosure controls and procedures.

We maintain �disclosure controls and procedures,� as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
�Exchange Act�), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms,
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial
officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are met. Our disclosure controls and procedures
have been designed to meet reasonable assurance standards. Additionally, in designing disclosure controls and procedures, our management
necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures. The
design of any disclosure controls and procedures also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there
can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. As described below in our
management�s report on internal control over financial reporting, we have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial
reporting, relating to our accounting for our international operations. Therefore, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2006.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than the material weakness noted below there was no significant change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the fourth quarter of 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Our internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and Board of
Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal control systems, no matter how well
designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As part of this
evaluation, management established an internal control project team, engaged outside consultants and adopted a
project work plan to document and assess the adequacy of our internal control over financial reporting, address any
control deficiencies that were identified, and to validate through testing that the controls are functioning as
documented.
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A material weakness is a control deficiency or combination of control deficiencies that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. Based on management�s assessment of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, we have identified the following material weakness.

We did not appropriately quantify the currency translation gain or loss upon liquidation of a foreign subsidiary in 2006, nor did we maintain
appropriate controls related to the periodic reconciliation of inter-company balances. Such objectives should have been met by the internal
controls over our accounting for international operations. In connection with our fiscal 2006 year end audit, a misclassification of the
accumulated currency translation adjustments, which balances should have been appropriately classified as an inter-company balance between
the liquidated subsidiary and the U.S. parent company, was identified and a corrective adjustment was made to our consolidated financial
statements. If the misclassification had remained undetected, the gain recognized upon the liquidation of the foreign subsidiary would have been
mistated, impacting �other income� reported in the consolidated statements of operations.

Because of the material weakness described in the preceding paragraphs, the Company has concluded its internal control over financial reporting
was not effective as of December 31, 2006.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has issued an attestation report on management�s assessment of our
internal control over financial reporting, which is included herein.

Additional Information and Remediation

The corrective adjustment discussed above had no effect on the consolidated financials statements of any year prior to 2006 because currency
translation adjustments are accumulated as a component of stockholders� equity and misclassifications between individual entities within the
same account have no effect on the consolidated financial statements until the liquidation of a foreign subsidiary occurs. Furthermore, the
misclassification for the liquidated subsidiary was corrected prior to the release of our fourth quarter and fiscal 2006 financial results reported in
our current report on Form 8 -K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 8, 2007.

We have since evaluated the accumulated currency translation adjustments of our foreign subsidiaries in order to determine the accuracy of the
entity-specific and consolidated balances. At the conclusion of this review, we determined the balances to be properly stated as of December 31,
2006. Going forward, we will review the reasonableness of our recorded currency translation balances once a quarter and in connection with the
liquidation of a foreign subsidiary.

In March 2007, we discussed the material weakness and remediation described above with our audit committee.

/s/ JOSHUA PICKUS
Joshua Pickus

Chief Executive Officer and President

/s/ KEN OWYANG
Ken Owyang

Chief Financial Officer and
Senior Vice President of Finance and Administration
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
SupportSoft, Inc.

We have audited management�s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting,
that SupportSoft, Inc. (the �Company�) did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, because of the
effect of the Company�s lack of adequate controls in the accounting for international operations with regard to review of amounts recorded for
currency translation adjustments, based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management�s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management�s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been
identified and included in management�s assessment.

The Company�s internal controls did not appropriately quantify the currency translation gain or loss upon liquidation of a foreign subsidiary in
2006, nor did the Company maintain appropriate controls related to the periodic reconciliation of inter-company balances. Such objectives
should have been met by the Company�s controls over accounting for international operations. In connection with the fiscal 2006 year end audit,
a misclassification of certain accumulated currency translation adjustments, which balances should have been appropriately classified as an
inter-company balance between the liquidated subsidiary
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and the U.S. parent company, was identified and a corrective adjustment was made to the consolidated financial statements. If the
misclassification had remained undetected, the gain recognized upon the liquidation of the foreign subsidiary would have been misstated,
impacting �other income� reported in the consolidated statements of operations.

This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2006 consolidated
financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 12, 2007 on those financial statements.

In our opinion, management�s assessment that SupportSoft, Inc. did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the
material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, SupportSoft, Inc. has not maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

/s/Ernst & Young LLP
San Jose, California
March 12, 2007
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ITEM 9B.  OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

PART III

ITEM 10.  DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to Item 401 of Regulation S-K regarding our directors is incorporated herein by
reference from the information contained in the section entitled �Directors and Nominees� in our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the �Proxy Statement�), a copy of which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before
April 30, 2007.

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to Item 405 of Regulation S-K regarding section 16(a) beneficial ownership
compliance is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section entitled �Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance�
in our Proxy Statement.

For information with respect to our executive officers, see �Executive Officers of the Registrant� at the end of Part I of this report.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Employees, Officers and Directors which is applicable to all of our directors,
executive officers and employees, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and
principal financial and accounting officer, respectively). The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Employees, Officers and Directors is
available on our web site at http://www.supportsoft.com/investors. A copy of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Employees, Officers
and Directors will be provided without charge to any person who requests it by writing to the address or telephoning the number indicated under
�SEC Filings and other Available Information� on page 13. We will disclose on our web site amendments to or waivers from its Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct applicable to our directors or executive officers, including our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to Items 407(c)(3), 407(c)(4) and 407(d)(5) is incorporated by reference from
the information contained in the sections entitled �Director Nominations,�� �Corporate Governance�� and �Committees of the Board of Directors�� in our
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference from the information contained in the sections entitled
�Executive Compensation and Related Information,� �Director Compensation,�� �Compensation Committee Report� and �Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation� in our Proxy Statement.
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ITEM 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K with respect to Item 403 of Regulation S-K regarding security ownership of certain
beneficial owners and management is incorporated herein by reference from the information contained in the section entitled �Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management� in the Proxy Statement.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Equity Compensation Plan Information
As of December 31, 2006

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants, and rights

Weighted-
average
exercise
price of
outstanding
options,
warrants,
and rights

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity Compensation Plans approved by security holders(1) 13,580,874 $5.334 1,342,095 (2)
Equity Compensation Plans not approved by security holders(3) � � �
Total 13,580,874 $5.334 1,342,095 (4)

(1)  Includes 1998 Stock Option Plan and 2000 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan. Stock options, restricted stock,
restricted stock units or stock appreciation rights may be awarded under the 2000 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan and
1998 Stock Option Plan.

(2)  The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2000 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the �2000 Incentive
Plan�) is subject to an annual increase as follows:

The aggregate number of options, SARs, stock units and restricted shares of common stock that may be awarded under the 2000 Incentive Plan
shall automatically increase each year by a number equal to the lesser of (i) 2,000,000 shares of common stock, (ii) 5% of the outstanding shares
of common stock on December 31 of such year or (iii) a lesser amount determined by our board of directors. The aggregate number of shares of
common stock which may be issued under the 2000 Incentive Plan shall at all times be subject to adjustment as a result of stock splits, dividends
payable in shares, combinations or consolidations of outstanding stock, recapitalizations, mergers or reorganizations. The number of shares of
common stock which are subject to options or other rights outstanding at any time under the 2000 Incentive Plan shall not exceed the number of
shares which then remain available for issuance under the 2000 Incentive Plan. During the term of the 2000 Incentive Plan, we shall at all times
reserve and keep available sufficient shares of common stock to satisfy the requirements of the 2000 Incentive Plan.

(3)  None.

(4)  The amount does not include 1,908,164 shares available for purchase pursuant to our 2000 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. Shares of common stock will be purchased at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value per share of
common stock on either the first day preceding the six-month offering period or the last date of the offering period,
whichever is less. The number of shares reserved for issuance shall automatically increase each year by a number
equal to the lesser of (i) 2,000,000 shares,
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(ii) 3% of the outstanding common stock on that date, or (iii) a lesser amount determined by our board of directors.

ITEM 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference from the information contained in the sections entitled
�Certain Relationships and Related Transactions� and �Director Independence�� in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES. 

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference from the information contained in the sections entitled
�Principal Accountant Fees and Services� and �Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures�� in our Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a)   The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1)  Financial Statements�See Index to the Consolidated Financials Statements and Supplementary Data in Item 8 of
this report.

(2)  Financial Statement Schedules�No schedules have been filed because the information required to be set forth
therein is not applicable or is shown in the financial statements or related notes included as part of this report.

(3)  Exhibits�See in Item 15(b) of this report.

(b)   Exhibits.

Exhibit Description of Document
  3(i) Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of SupportSoft�s

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).
  3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of SupportSoft�s annual report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).
  4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002).
  4.2 Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 22, 1999, by and among the registrant and the parties who are

signatories thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-30674) filed on February 18, 2000).

  4.3 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 14, 2000, by and among the registrant and
the parties who are signatories thereto (incorporated be reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Amendment No. 5 to
SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on June 27, 2000).

10.1* Registrant�s Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Amendment No. 8 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on March 9,
2000).

10.2* Registrant�s 2000 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Amendment No. 8
to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on July 13, 2000).

10.3* Registrant�s 2000 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on August 4, 2006.

10.4* Form of Directors and Officers� Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 registration
statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on February 18, 2000).

10.5* Employment Agreement, dated July 15, 1999, by and between the registrant and Radha R. Basu (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Amendment No. 3 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-30674) filed on April 26, 2000).

10.6* Transition Agreement between Radha R. Basu and SupportSoft, Inc., dated March 12, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2006).

10.7* Employment Agreement, dated August 16, 1999, by and between the registrant and Josh Pickus (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2006).
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10.8* Employment Agreement, dated August 16, 1999, by and between the registrant and Cadir Lee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 of SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on
February 18, 2000).

10.9* Employment Agreement, dated September 27, 1999, by and between the registrant and Brian M. Beattie
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Amendment No. 3 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on April 26, 2000).

10.10* Employment Agreement dated July 25, 2003, by and between registrant and Michael Sayer, dated April 24, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on April 27, 2006).

10.11* Employment Agreement between registrant and Robert Barnum, dated July 21, 2006.
10.12* Employment Agreement dated May 1, 2003, by and between registrant and Chris M. Grejtak (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.11 of SupportSoft�s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).
10.13* Employment Agreement dated November 15, 2004, by and between registrant and Ken Owyang, as amended on

December 28, 2005 and December 27, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current
report on Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2006).

10.14 Form of Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of
Amendment No. 2 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on March 31,
2000).

10.15 Lease agreement, dated October 1, 2001, by and between the registrant and Martin/Campus LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of SupportSoft�s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

10.16 First Amendment to Lease effective May 31, 2003 by and between MPTP Holding, LLC and the registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2003).

10.17 Second Amendment to Lease effective as of May 6, 2005 by and between MPTP Holding, LLC and the
Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2005).

10.18 Exercise of Lease Renewal Option dated December 16, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on December 22, 2005).

10.19 Sublease Agreement with Nuance Communications, Inc. dated November 9, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on form 8-K filed on November 15, 2006).

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
24.1 Power of Attorney (see page 81 of this Form 10-K)
31.1 Chief Executive Officer Section 302 Certification.
31.2 Chief Financial Officer Section 302 Certification.
32.1(1) Statement of the Chief Executive Officer under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
32.2(1) Statement of the Chief Financial Officer under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
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*  Denotes an executive or director compensation plan or arrangement.
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(1)  The material contained in Exhibit 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed �filed� with the SEC and is not to be
incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date hereof irrespective of any general incorporation language
contained in such filing, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

(c)  Financial Statement Schedules.

No schedules have been filed because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the financial statements or
related notes included as part of this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 16th day of March, 2007.

SUPPORTSOFT, INC.
By: /s/ JOSHUA PICKUS

Joshua Pickus
Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Joshua Pickus and
Ken Owyang, and each of them individually, as his or her attorney-in-fact, each with full power of substitution, for him or her in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact, or his or her
substitute, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ JOSHUA PICKUS Chief Executive Officer and President March 16, 2007

Joshua Pickus (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ KEN OWYANG Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of March 16, 2007

Ken Owyang Finance and Administration
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ KEVIN C. EICHLER Chairman of the Board of Directors March 16, 2007
Kevin C. Eichler

/s/ RADHA R. BASU Director March 16, 2007
Radha R. Basu

/s/ SHAWN FARSHCHI Director March 16, 2007
Shawn Farshchi

/s/ J. MARTIN O�MALLEY Director March 16, 2007
J. Martin O�Malley
/s/ JIM STEPHENS Director March 16, 2007

Jim Stephens
/s/ JAMES THANOS Director March 16, 2007

James Thanos
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description of Document
3(i) Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of SupportSoft�s annual

report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).
3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of SupportSoft�s annual report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002).
4.2 Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 22, 1999, by and among the registrant and the parties who are signatories

thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-30674) filed on February 18, 2000).

4.3 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 14, 2000, by and among the registrant and the
parties who are signatories thereto (incorporated be reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Amendment No. 5 to SupportSoft�s
registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on June 27, 2000).

10.1* Registrant�s Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Amendment No. 8 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on March 9, 2000).

10.2* Registrant�s 2000 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Amendment No. 8 to
SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on July 13, 2000).

10.3* Registrant�s 2000 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on August 4, 2006.

10.4* Form of Directors and Officers� Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 registration
statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on February 18, 2000).

10.5* Employment Agreement, dated July 15, 1999, by and between the registrant and Radha R. Basu (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Amendment No. 3 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-30674) filed on April 26, 2000).

10.6* Transition Agreement between Radha R. Basu and SupportSoft, Inc., dated March 12, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2006).

10.7* Employment Agreement, dated August 16, 1999, by and between the registrant and Josh Pickus (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2006).

10.8* Employment Agreement, dated August 16, 1999, by and between the registrant and Cadir Lee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 of SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on
February 18, 2000).

10.9* Employment Agreement, dated September 27, 1999, by and between the registrant and Brian M. Beattie
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Amendment No. 3 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-30674) filed on April 26, 2000).

10.10* Employment Agreement dated July 25, 2003, by and between registrant and Michael Sayer, dated April 24, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on April 27, 2006).

10.11* Employment Agreement between registrant and Robert Barnum, dated July 21, 2006.
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10.12* Employment Agreement dated May 1, 2003, by and between registrant and Chris M. Grejtak (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 of SupportSoft�s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

10.13* Employment Agreement dated November 15, 2004, by and between registrant and Ken Owyang, as amended on
December 28, 2005 and December 27, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current
report on Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2006).

10.14 Form of Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of
Amendment No. 2 to SupportSoft�s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-30674) filed on March 31,
2000).

10.15 Lease agreement, dated October 1, 2001, by and between the registrant and Martin/Campus LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of SupportSoft�s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

10.16 First Amendment to Lease effective May 31, 2003 by and between MPTP Holding, LLC and the registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2003).

10.17 Second Amendment to Lease effective as of May 6, 2005 by and between MPTP Holding, LLC and the Registrant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2005).

10.18 Exercise of Lease Renewal Option dated December 16, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
SupportSoft�s current report on Form 8-K filed on December 22, 2005).

10.19 Sublease Agreement with Nuance Communications, Inc. dated November 9, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of SupportSoft�s current report on form 8-K filed on November 15, 2006).

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
24.1 Power of Attorney (see page 81 of this Form 10-K)
31.1 Chief Executive Officer Section 302 Certification.
31.2 Chief Financial Officer Section 302 Certification.
32.1(1) Statement of the Chief Executive Officer under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
32.2(1) Statement of the Chief Financial Officer under 18 U.S.C. § 1350

*  Denotes an executive or director compensation plan or arrangement.

(1)  The material contained in Exhibit 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed �filed� with the SEC and is not to be
incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date hereof irrespective of any general incorporation language
contained in such filing, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.
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